CITY OF BROOKLET

104 CHURCH ST.BROOKLET, GA 30415 PHONE (912) 842-2137 FAX (912)842-5877

L.W. (Nicky) Gwinnett, Jr. Mayor Carter Crawford, City Manager
Rebecca Kelly, Mayor Pro-Tem Lori Phillips, City (_Jlerk
Bradley Anderson, Councilman Melissa Pevey, Assistant Clerk

Hubert Keith Roughton, Councilman : Ben Perkins, City Attorney
James Harrison, Councilman .
Sheila Wentz, Councilwoman

Work Session
September 12, 2024
6:30 PM
Proposed
Agenda
1. Call to order and welcome - Mayor Gwinnett
- Invocation
- Pledge of Allegiance
2, Consideration of a motion to approve the agenda

3. Discussion Items:

3.1.

B2
3.3.
3.4.
3.5

3.6.
3.7.

3.8.
3.9,

0Old Southeast Bulloch Junior High School located on Railroad Street
Discussion -

Agenda/Meeting Protocol

Draft Procurement Policy

SPLOST and TSPLOST Funds

Discussion of Water and Sewer Agreements with
Shelton Hughes and Weyerhaeuser

Sewer Tap Allocation Resolution

Discuss Adding an Extra Pipe to the Brooklet to
Statesboro Project. The Proposed Pipe would provide a
means for Existing Homeowners to Tap into the Sewer
System using a Pump at their house.

Generator Grant Discussion Funding Source

GDOT- North Cromley Road Tap Project Payment of
$95,795.03 Funding Source

l}lPage



3.10.

3.1L

3.12.

3.13.

JCB Low Country Invoice for repairing and maintaining
the Hydro Dig for $2,205.90
Georgia Equipment CO Invoices for renting an
excavator to repair water leaks & install tap-ins for -
$2,225.00 and $1,705.00 totaling $3,930.00
Review of the Quote from Terry Mikell Concrete, LLC.
to repair sidewalks on Railroad Street for $5,100.00
Review of two Quotes for an In-Car Video System for
the new Police Car

e Motorola Solutions Quote for $6,263.00

e Mclaggan Communications & Radar Service

Inc. for $9, 146.00

4. Motion to Adjourn






CITY OF BROOKLET
RULES OF DECORUM AND PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY FOR
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

The purpose of this Rules of Decorum and Public Comment Policy for City Council
Meetings is to foster an atmosphere of civil and courteous discourse at all meetings of
the City of Brooklet City Council.

1. Rules applicable to the public:

a. If the meeting agenda contains a public comment period, each member of
the public who has registered to speak prior to commencement of the
meeting will be given 3 minutes to speak.

b. Persons who register to speak during the public comment period shall not
be allowed to donate their time to another person.

c. Each speaker will direct their comments to the Mayor or presiding officer,
and not to any other individual present.

d. Each speaker will refrain from personal attacks, foul or abusive language,
and will maintain a civil and courteous manner and tone.

e. Public comments will be limited to the business of the City of Brooklet.

f. Unless they have been included on the agenda or have been recognized
and authorized to do so by the Mayor or presiding officer, members of the
public shall not be permitted to speak at any time other than the public
comment period.

g. Members of the audience will be respectful of the rights of others and will
not create noise or other disturbances that disrupt the meeting.

2. Rules applicable to the Mayor and City Council:

a. Members will conduct themselves in a professional and respectful manner
at all meetings.

b. Members will not speak until recognized by the Mayor or presiding officer.

c. Remarks by members will be directed to the Mayor or presiding officer
who will then direct the appropriate person to answer.

d. Members shall not respond to public comments during the public
comment period. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Mayor or Presiding
Officer may direct a City official to follow up with the person who offered
comments after the meeting is concluded.

Any violation of these Rules of Decorum may result in the violator being removed from
the premises.



CITY OF BROOKLET RULES REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN
HEARINGS AND COUNCIL MEETINGS

OFFERING COMMENTS DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS Anyone wishing to
speak at a public hearing of the City Council or Planning Commission must sign their
name, address, phone number, and topic on the approved sign in sheet, which will be
available at each public hearing. When the council meeting begins, the sign in sheet will
be taken up. Persons who wish to speak during a hearing must have their name on the
sign in sheet to speak. Each person, other than a Council Member or City staff member,
speaking at a public hearing will be allowed 3 minutes to make their comments. No
person may donate their time to another person. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for
hearings on proposed zoning decisions or quasi-judicial decisions, proponents of such
proposed decisions shall collectively be given a minimum of ten minutes to present data,
evidence, and opinions, and opponents shall collectively receive an equal amount of
time to present data, evidence, and opinions.

PUBLIC COMMENTS AT REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS Although not
required to allow for public comments, the City of Brooklet believes its citizens should
be given the opportunity to participate in Regular City Council meetings by offering
comments regarding the business of the City, and encourages its citizens to do so.
Regular City Council meeting agendas will typically have time set aside for public
comments. Please remember that during public comments, issues raised may be
referred to staff for research and possible future action.

SIGNING UP TO SPEAK DURING THE PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD Citizens
wishing to speak during a Regular City Council meeting at which a public comment
period is included on the agenda must write their name, address, phone number, and
topic on the sign in sheet prior to the time when the meeting begins. The Request to
Speak sign-in form will be available in the Council Chambers on the table by the
entrance before the meeting begins. Persons who desire to speak during the public
comment period must sign up to speak prior to the start of the meeting. Meeting
attendees shall not speak openly during the meeting unless first recognized by the
presiding officer (typically the Mayor). When the presiding officer calls their name,
attendees may speak for no more than 3 minutes. Any digital presentations must be
submitted prior to the meeting. Persons who attend the meeting as part of a group may
not give their time to another member of the group or any other person. The presiding
officer may stop the person from speaking further if the remarks or gestures are
profane, abusive, inflammatory, or otherwise offensive to a person of ordinary
sensibilities. Persons who refuse to stop speaking at the direction of the presiding officer
may be escorted from the meeting by a law enforcement officer in the discretion of the
law enforcement officer.



Brooklet City Council Public Comment Request
For Items Not on the Regular Agenda

Name (please print):

Address:

Email Address:

Daytime Phone: Other Phone:

Your organization (if any):

REQUESTED COUNCIL MEETING DATE:

TOPIC: Please be very specific in describing/identifying the issue you want to
speak on so that the agenda posting will comply with state law.

OTHER INFORMATION:

1. TIMING OF SUBMISSION OF REQUEST: Your request to speak must be
received at least one (1) week before the Council meeting at which you wish to speak,

meaning no later than 12 p.m. (noon) the preceding Thursday.
2. SUPPORTING MATERIALS: Please include with your application one ( 1)
complete set of any material or documentation you would like the Councilors to review.

3. PLACEMENT OF REQUEST ON COUNCIL AGENDA: Completion and
submission of this request does not guarantee that your topic will be placed on the

City Council Meeting Agenda.

4. TIME LIMIT: Council Rules provide that anyone addressing the Council is
allowed five (5) minutes total for the entire meeting.

You may submit your request as follows:

USPS: BrookletCity Hall Fax: (912) 842-5877
Email: lori.phillips@brookletga.us

P.O. Box 67
Brooklet, Ga 30415

Date:

Sign Here:

Council Use Only
By:

"Date received:







CITY OF BROOKLET

PURCHASINGPOLICIES



OBJECTIVE

The City of Brooklet is funded by tax dollars. As such, the City’s purchasing policies and
procedures have been established to ensure that tax dollars are spent in the most
economical way. The City uses competitive means for the purchase of all products and
services whenever possible and believes in open, fair competition. The purchasing
levels in this policy are subject to periodic review and may be changed with City
Council approval based on inflation and other factors.

USE OF POLICY

This policy and the award of bid provisions herein are solely for the fiscal responsibility
and benefit of the City of Brooklet, and confer no rights, duties or entitlements to any
bidders or proposers.

SECTION 1 DEFINITIONS

Capital Asset - Property, including durable goods, equipment, buildings, installations,
and land valued at $5,000 or more, and having a useful life greater than one year.

Capital iImprovement Projects — Any project to build, alter, repair, maintain or replace
necessary public buildings, streets and alleys, public parks and facilities, municipal
utilities, sidewalks, highways, parks or public grounds. Capital Improvement Projects
are included in the City's five-year capital improvement plan.

Capital Qutlay — Expenditures which result in the acquisition of or addition to capital
assets ($5,000 or more).

Competitive Bid Process — Term used to encompass bidding, request for proposals, or
request for qualifications when trying to get the best price or contractor for a project,
including bidding the project to any and all interested Vendors.

Cost of Operations — Expenditures categorized as wages, benefits, supplies or
contractual services; non-capital.

Emergency conditions - A situation in which any department’s operations may be
severely hampered or a situation in which the preservation of life, health, safety or
property may be at risk as determined by the Department Director.and the City
Manager.

Encumbrances — An amount of money committed by purchase order but not yet
expended for the purchase of a specific good or service.

E-Verify- is 2 web based system that allows the City and contractors to determine the
eligibility or their newly hired employees to work in the United States.

Evaluation Committee: Shall consist of the Mayor, one Council member, the City
Manager, the City Clerk and the Department Director

Expenditures — Decreases in net financial resources. Expenditures include current
operating expenses which require the current or future use of net current assets, debt



service, and capitat outlays.

independent Contractor — any person having a contract with the City for specific waork
as defined in the contract’s scope of work.

invitation to Bid — A bidding process requesting bids submitted based on specifications
for certain work included in the invitation.

Over Budget Expenditures - Expenditures which have exceeded the total amount of
budget by line item, department, or fund, )

Professional Services — Those services within the scope of the practice of architecture,
engineering, professional land surveying, industrial hygiene, legal counsel, financial
advisers, accountants/auditors, business consultants, recruiters, lobbyists, and banks.

Purchase Order — A document which authorizes the delivery of specified merchandise or
the rendering of services at an authorized cost.

Request for Proposals — An invitation for suppliers, companies, or individuals, through a
competitive process, to submit a proposal on a specific commadity or service,

Request for Qualifications — An invitation for suppliers, companies, or individuals to
identify and delineate their qualifications for a specific project.

Retainage — A portion or percentage of payments due for work completed on a contract
that is held back until the entire job {or some lesser defined portion thereof} is
completed satisfactorily.

SAVE- is the federa! Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlement Program that is used
to verify the eligibility of anyone applying to the City for a public benefit, which includes
contracts.

Services — The furnishing of a contractor’s {abor, time or effort not invoiving the delivery
of a specific end product other than reports which are merely incidental to the required
performance. The term doss not include professional services as previously defined.

Sole Source Purchase —is a procurement method that aliows, under certain conditions,
for procuring goods or services from a single source without soliciting bids from
muitiple sources.

Surplus Property — Materials and equipment which are no longer necessary to City
operations, are obsolete, or are deemed excessively expensive to maintain.

Unbudgeted expenditures — Expenditures for which no funds have been budgeted.

Written Bid Process — Term used to encompass bidding, request for proposals, or
request for qualifications when trying to get the best price or contractor for a project.



SECTION Il - PURCHASING LEVELS

<$100.00 $100.01 - $2,500 - $10,000 - $25,000 +
$2,499.99 $9,999.99
Bid/ No prior | Purchase Order| 1. Contractas 1. Written Bid 1. Competitive
Proposals & Purchase appropriate Process with a Bid Process
Forms Order is 2. Purchase minimum of 2. Contract
necessary; Order three (3) approved by
bring 3. Check written City Council
receipt Regquest bids/quotes/ | 3. Purchase Order
after 4. See proposals 4. Check
purchase Section 2. Contract as Reguest
with ] appropriate
Purchase 3. Purchase
Order Order
4.Check Request
5.See Section I
City Council approval required if project not in the annual
| budget. S
Approvals Department | Department Department ,
Director Director Director &
City City Council City Councit
Manager
Amendments & Increases greater than 5% or $2,500 (excluding any contingency) require
Change Orders additional approval

Alf bids/quotes/proposals are public information and can subject to the
provisions of the Georgia Open Records Act.

Retain ail bids/quotes/proposals for a minimum of three years as required by
retention schedule.

One original signed contract must be submitted to The City Clerk with

the completed project file.

Projects and purchases shalf not be divided in order to avoid higher

approval level. )




SECTION 111 - PETTY CASH REQUISITIONS

a3

A Purchase Order serves to inform the City Clerk of the needs of the departments,
correctly identifies a material or service requested for the department’s operations,
and identifies the expenditure account number to which the purchase is to be charged.

PETTY CASH REQUISITIONS

The petty cash fund may be used to pay for small obligations which do not exceed
S50.00. Petty cash receipts are submitted to the Deputy Clerk and will be honored
only with appropriate departmental supervisor approval. Petty cash requisitions will
be granted under the following circumstances:

e An employee is requesting a cash advance for expenditures relating to City
business (sales receipt must be returned to the Deputy Clerk within two
business days);

e An employee is requesting a reimbursement for expenditures relating to City
business (sales receipts must be attached to the requisition}.

it is the responsibility of the employee using the petty césh fund to make all
efforts to use the City's tax-exempt number and present it at the time of
purchase. Sales tax on purchases will not be reimbursed.



SECTION IV - PURCHASE ORDERS

Purchase Order shall be used to initiate the purchase of all materials or services.
Purchase Orders will be granted under the following circumstances:

e The requesting department shall be responsible for ensuring budget
availability, obtaining prices, designating Vendors, and preparing Purchase
Order far enough in advance of the required date;

e All purchase orders must be approved by the Department Director and
the City Clerk and, if over $2,500 approved by the City Manager;

e A purchase order number must be obtained prior to placing orders with
Vendors.

A standard purchase order is to be used for all purchases excluding the following areas.
Capital improvement projects cannot be exempt.

EXEMPT ITEMS

e Council Approved Service Contracts;

e Debt Service;

e Grants, Contributions, and Intergovernmental Agreement Obligations;

e insurance;

e Investment Transactions;

e Land Acquisition;

e Lease Payments;

¢ Maintenance and Support Licensing Agreements {associated with an approved
contract}; .

e Payroll {checks, taxes, and deductions};

e Professional Services as defined; and

o Utilities




SECTION V - BIDDING

Bidding procedures are used to provide Vendors the opportunity to bid, to elicit greater
Vendor response, to meet City Charter and City Code requirements, tc meet Georgia
statutory requirements applicable to the City, and to promote competitive prices from
Vendors for the purchase of capital equipment and other items of significant monetary
value. Department Directors reserve the right to call for competitive bids without
regard to amount. As used herein, “bidding” shall include requests for bids, requests
for proposals, requests for gualifications, and/or statements of qualifications. The
responsible Department Director shall determine when bidding procedures shall utilize
a request for bids, request for proposals, or request for qualifications, as appropriate.

All purchases of goods or acquisition of services above $25,000 and all purchases of
heavy equipment shall require competitive bidding procedures unless otherwise
required by the City Charter, City Code or state statute applicable to the City.
Exemptions to this policy are bids obtained through the specific processes listed below
in “State and Other Allowed Bids” and “Sole Source Purchases.”

TYPES OF BIDS

INFORMAL BIDS/QUOTES/PROPOSALS FOR PROJECTS UNDER $50,000

All purchases within the financial parameters of $2,500 to $50,000 shall require informal
bidding procedures.

e For purchases between $2,500 and $9,399 the requesting department shall
obtain and document a minimum of three (3} verbal quotations. if three (3}
quotations are not obtained, valid justification must be provided with the
Purchase Order and approved by the Department Director and City Manager.
For purchases between $10,000 and 525,000 the requesting department shall
use a State contract or obtain and document a minimum of three (3} written
quotations. if three (3) quotations are not obtained, valid justification must
be provided and approved by the City Council

e Notwithstanding the above requirements, Department Directors or the City
Manager may require a competitive bid process for any project regardless of
the amount.

STEPS TO COMPLETE AN INFORMAL BID/QUOTE/PROPOSAL: {unless otherwise
stated, the responsibility for these steps falls on the requesting department)

a) Develop specifications/information. Upon finalization of the
specifications, prepare any documents required by the informal bid;



h)

Mail a copy of specifications to identified Vendors;

Use the RFP process if Department Director determines it appropriate
for the project;

Post a copy of specifications/RFP to the City's official website and
send to any other appropriate websites;

Evaluate the bid/proposal results and determine which bid/proposal
serves the City's best interests;

Use the City-approved Contract form {Appendix G};

Submit the Purchase Order and quotes to the City Clerk. if the
recommended Vendor has not submitted the low bid, ensure that
there is adequate justification for the higher bid; and

The Deputy Clerk issues the Purchase Order.

COMPETITIVE BIDS FOR PROJECTS OVER $25,000

“Competitive/formal bidding” includes invitations to bid, requests for proposals {RFP},
requests for qualifications {RFQ), and statements of qualifications (SCQ).

e Al requests for competitive bids shall be published at least two {2) timesin a
newspaper of general circulation in the City. The last publication shall not be
more than twenty {20) days or fewer than fourteen (14} days priorto the
date set for the opening of bids. Such notice may also be published in other
publications of limited circulation or trade journals. In addition to
publication, the formal bid must be posted on the City's website and may be
posted on other websites.

+ Notices, general instructions, conditions and specifications are not reguired
to be published and may be mailed or emailed to identified Vendors, and
may be posted on the City’s web site.

18 i

STEPS TO COMPLETE A COMPETITIVE BiD: {unless otherwise stated, the

responsibility for completing these steps falls on the requesting department}

a}

b}

Develop specifications. Upon finalization of the specifications,
determine any special requirements, such as bid, performance and
payment bonds; insurance; retainage; and any special requirements
the requesting department may need. See bonding and insurance
requirements listed below;

Prepare all bid documents required by the formal bid and public
notice. All bid documents are subject to the provisions of the
Georgia Open Records Act. Bid documents shall contain the
following information:

» \Where the bidder can obtain bid documents;
e Any costs of bid documents;

& Bid submittal deadline;



s Date, time and location of bid openings;
= Any bond or insurance requirements;
*  Any special requirements;

e A statement to the effect that the City reserves the right to
reject any and all bids, and to accept the bid deemed to be the
lowest cost and a reliable and responsible bidder;

= General conditions;

»  Minimum specifications;

+ Bid proposal form;

e Delivery date or completion date;
e Period of bid validity; and

« Bidder/proposer must sign the Prohibition Against Employing
tliegal Aliens at the time of submitting the bid and verify that
bidder/proposer is lawfully present in the United States, if
applicable.

Departments will be responsible for obtaining at least three (3]
bids/proposals if available. if three {3} bids/proposals are not
obtained, valid justification must be provided and approved by
the City Manager;

Conduct the public bid opening per the advertised bid opening
date {if required}. Any bids received after the specified time will
be returned to the bidder. These bids may need to be opened in
order to process a return of the bid;

Evaluate the bid results and determine which bid serves the City's
best interests. If the recommended Vendor has not submitted the
fow bid, provide justification for the higher bid;

Reports:

= [f over $10,000 {or a project that is not in the approved annual
budget), advise the City Manager's Office that the item needs
to go on the City Council agenda and prepare a City Council
ftem listing the preferred Vendor and justification.

Use City Attorney approved contracts and insurance and bond
requirements;

Upon the City Manager's/City Council’s award of bid, notify all
bidders of the results;

Obtain signatures on all contracts;
Complete Purchase Order and forward to the City Clerk;

Deputy Clerk issues a Purchase Order;



STEPS TO COMPLETE A REQUES

FOR PROPOSAL: (unless otherwise stated, the

responsibility for compfetmg these steps falls on the requesting department}

a)

<l

d}

f)

Develop project information, determine any special requirements,
such as performance and payment bonds; insurance; retainage; and
any special requirements the requesting department may need. See
bonding and insurance requirements listed below;

Prepare the request for proposal. All documents are subject to the
provisions of the Geargia Open Records Act. Request for Proposals
shall contain the following information:

+ Where the bidder can obtain information;
= Proposal submittal deadline;

e Date, time and location of RFP openings [only a list of the
proposals will be made available until such time as all
proposals can be evaluated};

» Any bond or insurance requirement;

* Any special requirements;

e A statement to the effect that the City reserves the right to
reject any and all proposals, and to accept the proposal
deemed to be the lowest cost and a reliable and responsible
proposal;

s (General conditions;

e Minimum specifications;

» Bid proposal form {if there is one};
s Delivery date or completion date;
o Period of bid validity; and

¢ Bidder/proposer must sign the Prohibition Against Employing
lilegal Aliens at the time of submifting the bid and verify that
bidder/proposer is lawfully present in the United States, i
applicable.

Departments will be responsibie for obtalning at teast three (3)
proposals if available. if three (3} proposals are not obtained, valid
justification must be provided and approved by the City Manager.

The RFP may be mailed or emailed to identified Vendors and shall
be posted on the City’s website;

Conduct the public RFP opening per the advertised opening date.
Any proposals received after the specified time will be returned to
the bidder. These proposals may need to be opened in order to
process the return {only a list of the proposals will be made
available until such time as all proposals can be evaluated};

Evaiuate the proposals and determine which proposal serves the



City's best interests. If the recommended Vendor has not submitted
the low bid, provide justification for the higher bid;

g)  Use City Attorney approved contracts and insurance and bond
requirements;

h})  Upon the City Manager’s/City Council’s award of bid, notify all
bidders of the results;

i) Obtain signatures on all contracts;

i) Complete Purchase Order and forward to the City Clerk;
and

k}  City Clerk issues a Purchase Order.

STEPS TO COMPLETE A REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS: {uniess otherwise
stated, the responsibility for completing these steps falls on the requesting
department).

a) Develop minimum qualifications for project. Upon finalization of the
specifications, determine any special requirements the Vendor must
have. See bonding and insurance requirements listed below;"

b} The RFQ may be mailed or emailed to identified Vendors and shall be
posted on the City’s website;

¢} Prepare the request for qualifications. All documents received in
response to the RFQ become public information upon completion of
the RFQ, except that the City may determine not to disclose trade
secrets or other confidential commercial, financial or personal
information;

d) Once all RFQ's are evaluated and the list of qualified Vendors is
determined, a bid request or RFP for the specific project can be
prepared and the above steps shall be followed with those specific
Vendors.

BONDING REQUIREMENT e
Bonds shall be executed on forms prescribed or approved by the City Manager based on
review by the City Attorney, as to form, and State of Georgia law. Normally, bonding
should be used only on critical or complex purchasing actions. The City may declare the
purchasing of any standard items of commerce and services from standard trades and
professions, which are not altered or customized to unique City specifications, to be
exempt from bonding requirements.

EXAMPLES OF BONDS

31D BONDS: The bid bond requirement may be satisfied by receipt of a certified
bank check or an irrevocable letter of credit. The bid security is submitted as
guarantee that the bid will be maintained in full force and effect for a period of



thirty (30) calendar days after the opening of bids or as specified in the
solicitation documents. if the supplier/contractor fails to provide the bid security
with the bid, the bid shall be deemed non-responsive. The bid bond shall be at
least 10% of the Vendor’s bid price if the bid is over $150,000 and at least 5% of
the Vendor’s bid if under

$150,000.

PERFORMANCE BONDS: A performance bond, satisfactory to the City, may be
required for any contract and will be used for all contracts for public buildings,
works or improvements awarded in excess of $50,000. The performance bond
shall be in amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the price specified
in the contract, or any other higher amount determined by the purchasing
department to be in the best interest of the City.

PAYMENT BONDS: A payment bond for the protection of all persons supplying
labor and material to the contractor or its subcontractors may be required for all
contracts awarded in excess of $50,000. The payment bond.shall be in an
amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the price specified in the
contract, or any other higher amount determined by the purchasing department
to be in the best interest of the City.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT

All contractors are required to provide certificates of insurance with the City named as
additional insured, for the following insurance coverages and amounts {except as
waived by the City Manager):

Comprehensive General Liability

$1,000,000 each occurrence
$2,000,000 general aggregate
Automobile Liability

$150,000 combined single limit — bodily injury & property damage/per
person

$600,000 combined single limit — bodily injury & property damage/two or
maore persons in any one occurrence

$50,000 auto physical damage

Workers’ Compensatian

Statutory limits

Employers’ Liability insurance
$100,000/ each accident
$500,000/ disease - policy limit

$100,000/ disease - each employee

Professional Liability {for licensed professional services)




$1,000,000 each occurrence
$2,000,000 general aggregate

BIDDER LIST AND BID EVALUATION

A Bidder’s List may be established and maintained by individual Departments in an
effort to promote competitive bidding from qualified Vendors and to establish a source
of supplier.

in addition to the bid amount, additional factors will be considered as an integral part of
the bid evaluation process, including, but not limited to:

+ The bidder’s ability, capacity and skill to perform within the specified time
Hmits;

s The bidder’s experience, reputation, efficiency, judgment, and integrity;
e The guality, availability, and adaptability of the supplies or materials hid;
» Bidder’s past performance;

e Sufficiency of bidder’s financial resources to fulfill the contract;

« Bidder's ability to provide future maintenance or service;

= Other applicable factors as the City determines necessary or appropriate
{such as compatibility with existing facilities, equipment or hardware};

= if 2 bid other than low bid is recommended, the requesting department must
demonstrate how the higher bid serves the best interests of the City.

ANNUAL CONTRACTS

All service contracts must specifically state the term of the contract and the options for
renewing the contract {if applicable) bevond the original term. Inv no case shall any
service contract have an indefinite term. Contracts should begin and end within the
current fiscal year. It must also be expressly stated in any multi-year service contract—
which is any contract with a term extending beyond the current fiscal year—that all
financial obligations of the City beyond the current fiscal year are subject to annual
appropriation, Standard language for this purpose is as follows: “Contractor
acknowledges that any potential expenditure for this Agreement outside the current
fiscal vear is contingent upon appropriation, budgeting, and avallability of specific funds
for such proposed expenditure, and nothing in this Agreement constitutes a debt or
direct or indirect multiple fiscal year financial obligation of the City.”



SECTION VI - SOLE SOURCE PURCHASES, LOCAL VENDOR
PURCHASES AND ETHICS

SOLE SOURCE PURCHASES

it is the policy of the City of Brookiet to recognize and solicit quotes. Sole source
purchases may be made if it has been determined that there is only one good or service
that can reasonably meet the need and there is only one Vendor who can provide the
good or service. These purchases should be used if it is in the best interest of the City,
and the following procedures shall apply:

PURCHASE IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000 OR MORE

Bidding procedures may be waived by the City Council when it has been
demonstrated that the requested goods or services are a sole source purchase. If
the sole source purchase is not approved, the department shall obtain additional
bids or quotes in compliance with this Policy.

LOCAL VENDOR PREFERENCE

To encourage purchasing within the City of Brooklet, it is the policy of the City to
recognize and solicit quotes/bids from local Vendors. Whenever such local sources exist
and are competitive, purchases shall be made from local Vendors; however, all
purchasing ordinances and policies as well as any other City award factors still apply. To
be considered within this policy, local Vendors must have a current valid business
registration or sales tax license on file with the City.

As deemed appropriate solely within the discretion of the City, bids may be awarded to
local Vendors providing the proposal or quote is within 5% or $10Q0 {whichever is less)
of the lowest bid. The next preference would be given to bidders in the same county as
the city, using the same criteria.

in an event where it may be prohibited as a condition of any grant, or violation of law,
the local Vendor preference shall not be applied.

ETHICS IN CITY CONTRACTING

City officers, employees and public body members may not have an interest in a contract
with the City, unless the interest is disclosed and that person is recused from
participating in the decision process. Further, city officers, employees or public body
members with an interest in a contract may not attempt to influence any City employee
or decision maker who has influence or decision making power over the contract.



SECTION VII - PURCHASING DURING EMERGENCY OR
DISASTER CONDITIONS

An emergency shall be defined as a situation in which any department’s operations may
be severely hampered or a situation in which the preservation of life, health, safety or
property may be at risk as determined by the Department Director or City Manager.
The required purchasing procedures stipulated in the Purchasing Levels Section and
other areas of this policy shall be waived for emergency purchases. A summary of all
emergency purchases shall be prepared by the City Clerk and submitted for review by
Mavyor and City Council at the earliest City Council meeting possible.

When the need for an emergency purchase occurs during normal working hours, the
department will request approval from the City Manager or his designee. If approved,
the City Manager shall give verbal approval of the transaction followed by written
approval to the requesting department and to the City Clerk, which may be required to
complete the transaction for the requesting department. The user department or City
Clerk will note the emergency on the check request form, sales ticket or invoice.

During a partial or full activation of the Bulloch County Emergency Operations Center
(EQC) that requires the presence of a City Clerk representative on site, the approval
authority as set forth in the Purchasing Levels Section is hereby revised to read as
follows:

e Department Director — Approval of emergency purchase up to $50,000.
e City Clerk — Approval of emergency purchase up to $50,000.
e City Manager — Approval of emergency purchase over $50,000.



SECTION VIII - RECEIVING PROCEDURES AND CHECK

REQUESTS

RECEIVING PROCEDURES

it shall be the responsibility of the receiving department/division to ensure
that shipped goods are received as ordered and in good condition. Upon
receipt of merchandise, check quantity, quality, and any specifications such
as model number, etc. to ensure that the goods have been received as
indicated on the packing slip and as ordered on the Purchase Order.
Receiving documents {Packing Slip or Receipt of Goods Form — Appendix C}
must be signed and dated by the employee receiving the goods;

If the goods are faulty or damaged, notify the Vendor and Accounts Payable
immediately. If damage is concealed or not noticed at time of delivery, retain
all boxes and packing lists and notify Vendor immediately;

All invoices shall be mailed by the Vendor directly to the attention of Accounts
Payable, 104 Church St., Brooklet, GA 30415.

it shall be the responsibility of the receiving department/division to inform
Accounts Payable of the delivery and acceptance of an order by submitting
the receiving documents with the check request for payment.



SECTION IX - APPENDICES

APPENDIX A — Asset Disposal Form
APPENDIX B — Sample Request for Proposals

APPENDIX C- Sample Request for Qualifications
APPENDIX D — Sample Independent Contractor Agreement



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR

The City of is accepting proposals from qualified contractors ("contractor”) to
. Please review the following pages
for complete information on the reguest for proposal process.

Timeline of Activities and Proposal Format

o Eight (8) copies of each proposal shall be submitted.

e The City of will receive proposals in response to
this RFP unti , “our clock” on -. Proposals
received after that ime will not be reviewed. Proposals
must be in a sealed envelope plainly marked with the
project name *© ", and shall be addressed as follows:

City of Brooklet
104 Church St
Brockiet, GA 30415

= interviews of applicants selected by City for
interview — beginning the week of.

+ Anticipate final selection approximately

« Contract signed by City Council approximately




REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR

Section 1. Summary of Request

Purpose — The City of Brooklet is accepting proposals from qualified contractors to
as defined in the scope of work. Questions regarding the proposal can be
directed to:

City of Brooklet
104 Church St.
Brooklet, GA 30415

Section 2. Scope of Work

The Scope of Work shall include but is not limited to the following:

ADD SPECIFICATIONS

Section 3. Standard Terms and Conditions

When preparing a proposal for submission in response to this RFP, contractors
should be aware of the following terms and conditions which have been
established by the Cily of Brooklet:

e This request for proposals is not an offer to contract, The provisions in
this RFP and any purchasing policies or procedures of the City are solely
for the fiscal responsibility of the City, and confer no rights, duties or
entitlements to any party submitting proposals. The City of Brooklet
reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to consider alternatives,
to waive any informalities and irregularities, to abandon the project and
this RFP at any time, and to re-solicit proposals.

s« The City of Brooklet reserves the right fo conduct such investigations of
and discussions with those who have submitted proposals or other
entities as they deem necessary or appropriate {o assist in the evaluation
of any proposal or to secure maximum clarification and completeness of
any proposal.

e The successful proposer shall be required to sign a contract with the
City in a form provided by and acceptable to the City. The contractor
shall be an independent contractor of the City.



» The City of Brocklet assumes no responsibility for payment of any
expenses incurred by any proponent as part of the RFP process.

e The following criteria will be used to evaluate all proposals:

o The contractor’s interest in the services which are the subject of this
RFP, as well as their understanding of the scope of such services
and the specific requirements of the City of Brooklet.

O

The reputation, experience, and efficiency of the contractor.

o The ability of the contractor to provide quality services within time
and funding constraints,

o The general organization of the proposal: Special consideration
will be given to submittals which are appropriate, address the
goals; and provide in a clear and concise format the requested
information.

Other selection factors within this RFP or the City's purchasing
poiicies, or that City determines are relevant to tonsideration of
the best interests of the City. '

O

= All responses to this RFP become the property of the City upon receipt
and regardless of selection or rejection, and will not be returned, except
that all responses are subject to the provisions of the Georgia Open
Records Act.

+ Provide the name, address, and email address of contractor. if an entily,
provide the legal name of the entity and the names of the entity's
principal(s) who is proposed to provide the services.

+ Provide a review of your qualifications and briefly expiain how you
plan fo complete the required tasks.
« Provide references for your work.

¢ Provide the completed pre-contract certification and return with your
proposal.

Thank you, we look forward to reviewing your proposal.



City of Brooklet Public Services Contract
Addendum Prohibition Against Employing lllegal
Aliens

Ali contractors must comply with all applicable state and federal immigration laws, including E-Verify
and SAVE.

Pre-Contract Certification in Compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-
90, et seq.

The undersigned hereby certifies as follows:

That at the time of providing this certification, the undersigned does not knowingly employ or contract
with an illegal afien; and that the undersigned will participate in the E-Verify program or the
Department program, as defined in 0.C.G.A. § 13-10-80, et seq., respectively, in arder to confirm
the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform under
the public contract for services.

Proposer:

By:

Title:




City of BROOKLET

Request for
Qualifications (RFQ)

Issued
DATE



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
S oNEAUIE OF EEVBIIS 1. i iiiiiciet it e et e o ete e e eaete reeeseinee s eassatasex nse s easanr st ae et nre e e s nsaeeerasAnraeann s aneesanseeannne s
INtrOTUCHION & BACKGIOUNT ..ot cien et e e e et e e eb e e entteeanmte s oo aanseaesar et araranaroaasaraarnnseinrcanr
General Information & REQUINEMENTS ..ot ere e e s e e cnesemn e saesarnecereans erreenreeans
£t s ToT o o 1= S OO T U O U RO O U PO OU SRRSO
O QU NS o e oot re st tie s e sre e aess s e e sn e nas s mea e sesmtaneaserartacranmenae e s mstn e e e nnan e e nraeenanerannn
Evaluation CriteIIE .. ... e aa e e e a e e e e et ettt ee it et reateeaesee e aarnneaens
SCHEDULE OF EVENTS
Event "~ Datefs)
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) Released..........ccoocc i DATE
Deadline for Requesting RFQ Clanification ..o DATE
Response to Reguests for RFQ Clarficalion ..o DATE
Responsesto RFQ due by TIME. ... T .. DATE
Qualifled Vendors Selecied .. .o e DATE
Request for Proposais {(RFP) Distributed to Qualified Vendors............. eeemeenenen oo DATE
Qualified Vendors Response to RFP due by 400 p.m, MST .. DATE
Product Demonsiralions . o e e aee s e et eea e nnne s aae e DATE
Negotiation & Clarificalion ... e e DATE
Approval of Contract...........ccceeein s e e et et rreneas DATE
Begin Implementation............... e e e e DATE

The City of Brooklet reserves the right to modify this schedule at ifs sole discretion if i
deems necessary.



INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND

The City of Brooklet, Georgia, hereinafter referred to as the City, seeks to prequalify
firms to provide

Add any other necessary and relevant information.
GENERAL INFORMATION & REQUIREMENTS

The first step in the City's Request for Proposal (RFP} process is this RFQ, which seeks
to obtain information in order to prequalify Vendors for participation and consideration in
subsequent steps of the RFP. In order to be considered for prequalification, the
respondent to this RFQ must be the provider of .

From the issuance date of this RFQ until a Vendor(s) is selected and the selection is
announced, Vendors are not allowed to communicate with any City staff or officials
regarding this procurement, except at the direction of the City Manager or___

the designated representatives of the City. Any unauthorized contact may cttsquaitfy
the Vendor from further consideration.

Receipt of Proposals and Pubiic Inspection

Upon receipt of qualifications, all marked trade secrefs and company financial
information will be removed from the responses and provided only to the evaluation
committee members or persons participating in the confracting process. All remaining
qualification materials will be available for public inspection after the final award process.

Claims to Keep information Confidential

All responses to this RFQ become the property of the City upon receipt and regardiess
of selection or rejection, and will not be returned, except that the City may return lale
responses submitted after the response deadline. Any trade secrets or confidential
commercial or financial information submifted with any response is subject to potential
disclosure, and submitting it constitutes proposer’s waiver of any recourse against the
City in respect to disclosure and proposer's agreement to indemnify the City for any
costs, legal fees or expenses incurred in relation to any proceeding concerning
disclosure of such information. Any trade secrets or confidential commercial or financial
information submitted with a response shall be clearly segregated and marked; provided;
however, that neither cost information nor the total RFP will be considered proprietary.
The City will notify the Vendor of any request for disclosure of information so segregated
and marked that may be subject to nondisclosure, and it will be the responsibility of the
Vendor to object and to pursue any legal actions pursuant to Georgia law. A Vendor
shall notify the City within 24 hours of notification by City of request for disclosure of the
Vendor's objections fo disclosure and the Vendor's intent to pursue lawful protection
under Georgia law.

Initial Classification

All qualifications will be initially classified as being responsive or non-responsive based
upon the requirements in Section 3.2. If a response is found o be non-responsive, it will
not be considered further.



Evailuation

All responsive qualifications will be evaluated based on stated evaluation criteria.
Submitted qualifications must be complete at the time of submission and may not include
references to information located elsewhere, such as internet websites or libraries, uniess
specifically requested in the City’'s RFQ document.

Discussion/Negotiation

Although Vendors may be prequalified withoul discussion, the City may initiate
discussions with one or more Vendors should clarification be necessary. Vendors should
be prepared to send qualified personnel to Brooklet, to discuss technical and
contractual aspects of their proposal.

Prequalification

Prequalification will be made to the Vendors whose responsive qualifications are
determined fo best meet the evaluation criteria and therefore the most advantageous to
the City. The City may prequalify as many Vendors as it feels serves its best interest.

Late Submissions .

Regardless of cause, late qualifications will not be accepted and will automatically be
disqualified from further consideration. it shall be the Vendor’s sole risk to assure delivery
at the designated office by the designated time. Late qualifications will not be opened
and may be returned to the Vendor at the expense of the Vendor or destroyed if requested.

Preparing a Response

This RFQ contains the instructions governing the qualifications to be submitled and a
description of the mandatory requirements. To be eligible for consideration, a Vendor
must meet the intent of all mandatory requirements, Compliance with the intent of all
requirements will be determined by the City's evaluation committee. Responses that do
not meet the full intent of all requirements listed in this RFQ may be subject to point
reductions during the evaluation process or may be deemed non-responsive.

Vendors shall promptly notify the City of any ambiguity, inconsistency or error, which
they may discover upon examination of this RFQ.

Wendors requiring clarification or interpretation of any seclion or sections contained in
this RFQ shall make a written request to the City by the deadline. All wrilten
correspondence must be addressed to:

City of Brooklet

RFQ

P. Q. Box 87
Brooklet, GA 30415

Each Vendor submitting written questions must clearly address each question by
reference o a specific section, page, and item of this RFQ. A written answer will be
provided to all questions received by TIME AND DATE. Written questions received
after the deadline may not be considered.



Any interpretation, correction, or change to this RFQ will be made by written addendum
by . Interpretations, corrections, or changes to this RFQ made in any
other manner will not be binding and Vendors shall not rely upon such interpretations,
corrections, or changes.

Vendors must organize gualifications into sections following the format of this RFQ.

if no exception, explanation, or clarification is required in the Vendor's response fo a
specific subsection, the Vendor shall indicate so in the point-by-point response with the
following:

“t\endor's NameY, understands and will comply.

Points may be subfracted for non-compliance with specified qualification format
requests. The City may also choose to not evaluate, may deem non-responsive, or may
disqualify from further consideration any qualifications that de not follow this RFQ format,
are difficult to understand, are difficuit to read, or are missing any requested information.

A Vendor responding to a question with a response similar to, “Refer to our literature...”
or “Please see www....... com’ may be deemed non-responsive of receive point
deductions. All materiais related to a response must be submitied to the City in the RFQ
response and not just referenced. Any references in an answer to another location in the
RFQ materials shall have specific page numbers and sections stated in the reference.
Each question is scored independently of one another and the scoring is based soiely on
the information provided in the response to the specific guestion.

Submitting Qualifications
Vendors must submit one (1) original and four {4) copies to:

City of Brooklet

, RFQ
104 Church St
Brooklet, GA 30415

Qualifications must be received at the City of Brooklet prior to TIME AND DATE.
Qualifications received after this time will not be accepted for consideration. Facsimile
submissions are not acceptable.

Each Vendor who submits qualifications represents that:

s The qualifications are based upon an understanding of the specifications and
requirements described in this RFQ.

s« Costs for developing and delivering responses to this RFQ and any subsequent
presentations of the proposal as reguesied by the City are entirely the
responsibility of the Vendor. The City is not liable for any expense incurred by the
Vendor in the preparation and presentation of their qualifications.

s All materiais submitted in response to this RFQ become the property of the City
and are to be appended to any formal documentation, which would further define
or expand any contractual relationship between the City and the Vendor resuiting
from this RFP process.



e« An individual authorized to legally bind the business submitting the qualifications
must sign the qualifications in ink.

Rights Reserved

While the City has every intention fo award a contract as a result of the RFP, issuance of

the RFP in no way constitutes a commitment by the City to award a contract. Upon a

determination such actions would be in its best interests, the Cily in ifs sole discretion,

and for whatever reason it deems reasonable, reserves the right to:

waive any formality;

cancel, terminate or abandon this RFQ or the RFP;

reject any or all gualifications received in response to this document;

waive any undesirable, inconsequential, or inconsistent provisions of this

document, which would not have significant impact on any gquatlifications;

s not award, or if awarded, terminate any confract if the City determines adequate
funds are not available.

* * 8 B

Vendor Interview / Product Demonstration
After receipt of all gualifications and prior to the release of the next step in the RFP
process, respondents may be required to make an oral presentation and product
demonstration at the City Hall in Brooklet, Georgia, to clarify their response or to
further define their qualifications. Oral presentations and product demonstrations, i
requested, shall be at the Vendor's expense.

Contract Provisions and Terms

This RFQ and any addenda, the Vendor's response including dny amendments, any
clarification guestion responses, and any negotiations shall be included in any resulting
contract.

PRGJECT SCOPE

ADD SPECIFICATIONS

VENDOR QUALIFICATIONS

The City may make such investigations as deemed necessary to defermine the ability of
the Vendor to supply the products and perform the services specified. The Cily reserves
the right to reject any qualifications if the evidence submitted by, or investigation of, the
Vendor fails to satisfy the City that the Vendor is properly qualified to carry out the
obligations of the project.

ADD SPECIFICATIONS

EVALUATICN CRITERIA

Evaluation Procedure

The evaluation committee will separate proposals into “responsive” and “non- responsive”
proposals. Non-responsive proposals will be eliminated from further consideration. The
evaluation commitiee will then evaluate the remaining proposals and determine which
Vendors prequalify. Only prequalified Vendors will be allowed to participate in subsequent
steps of this RFP process.




Evaluation Criteria
The evaluation committee will review and evaluate the qualifications received according
to the following criteria:

Quality and relevance of references;

Proven ability to deliver products in the scope of project;

Financial stability;

Training,

Support;

Other criteria within this RFQ or the City's purchasing policies, or that the City
determines are relevant to consideration of the best interests of the City.

» B 9 & 2 9



APPENDIX G: SAMPLE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF Brooklet, GA
AND
FOR SERVICES

1.0 PARTIES

The parties to this Agreement are the City of Brooklet, Georgia, a municipal corporation,
hereinafter referred to as the “City™, and ., [Name of Contractor] a [State
of Formation and Type of Entity], hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor™.

2.0 RECITALS AND PURPOSE
2.1 The City desires to engage the Contractor for the purpose of providing

services as further set forth in the Contractor’s
Scope of Services (which services are hereinafter referred to as the “Services™).

[§)
)

The Contractor represents that it has the special expertise, qualifications and
background necessary to complete the Services.

3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide the City with the specific Services and to perform the
specific tasks, duties and responsibilities set forth in Scope of Services attached hereto as
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. Contractor shall furnish all tools.
labor and supplies in such quantities and of the proper quality as are necessary to
professionally and timely perform the Services. Contractor acknowledges that this
Agreement does not grant any exclusive privilege or right to supply Services to the City.

4.0 COMPENSATION

4.1 The City shall pay the Contractor for Services under this Agreement a total not to
exceed the amounts set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference. For Services compensated at hourly or per unit rates, or on a
per-task basis, such rates or costs per task shall not exceed the amounts set forth
in Exhibit B. The foregoing amounts of compensation shall be inclusive of all
costs of whatsoever nature associated with the Contractor’s efforts, including but
not limited to salaries, benefits. overhead. administration, profits, expenses. and
outside Contractor fees. The Scope of Services and payment therefor shall only
be changed by a properly authorized amendment to this Agreement. No City
employee has the authority to bind the City with regard to any pavment for any
Services which exceeds the amount payable under the terms of this Agreement.



4.3

Loy
[N

6.0

The

The Contractor shall submit monthly an invoice to the City for Services rendered
and a detailed expense report for pre-approved. reimbursable expenses incurred
during the previous month. The invoice shall document the Services provided
during the preceding month, identifying by work category and subcategory the
work and tasks performed and such other information as may be required by the
City. The Contractor shall provide such additional backup documentation as may
be required by the City. The City shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) days of
receipt unless the Services or the documentation therefor are unsatistactory.

Payments made after thirty {30} days may be assessed an interest charge of one
percent {1%) per month unless the delay in payment reaniied from unsatisfactory

work or documentation therefor.

Contractor acknowledges that any potential expenditure for this Agreement
outside the current fiscal year is contingent upon appropriation, budgeting, and
availability of specific funds for such proposed expenditure, and nothing i this
Agreement constitutes a debt or direct or indirect multiple fiscal year financial
obligation of the City.

PROJECT REPRESENTATION
The City designates as the responsible City staff to provide

direction to the Contractor during the conduct of the Services. The Contractor
shall comply with the directions given by and such person’s designees.

The Contractor designates as its project manager and as the
principal in charge who shall be providing the Services under this Agreement.
Should any of the representatives be replaced, particularly__, and such replacement
require the City or the Contractor to undertake additional reevaluations,
coordination, orientations, etc., the Contractor shall be fully responsible for all such
additional costs and services.

TERM

term of this Agreement shall be . 20t
. 20_, unless sooner terminated pursuant to Section 13, below.

The Contractor’s Services unéel this Agreement shall commence upon execution of this
Agreement by the City and Contractor shall proceed with diligence and promptness so
that the Services are completed in a timely fashion consistent with the City's

requirements.
7.8 INSURANCE
7.1 The Contractor agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, the policies

of insurance set forth in Subsections 7.1.1 through 7.1.4. The Contractor shall
not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations assumed
pursuant to this Agreement by reason of its failure to procure or maintain
insurance. or by reason of its fatlure to procure or maintain insurance in
sufficient amounts, durations, or tvpes. The coverages required below shall be
procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable to the City. All



coverages shall be continuously maintained from the date of commencement of
Services hereunder. The required coverages are:

7.1.3

7.1.4

Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State
of Georgia and Employers Liability Insurance. Evidence of qualified self-
insured status may be substituted.

General Liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of ONE
MILLION DOLLARS ($1.000.000) each occurrence and TWO MILLION
DOLLARS ($2.000.000) aggregate. The policy shall include the City of
Brooklet, its officers and its employees, as additional insureds, with
primary coverage as respects the City of Brooklet, its officers and
its emplovees, and shall contain a severability of interests provision.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance with minimum combined
single limits for bodily injury and property damage of not less than ONE
HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000) per person
in any one occurrence and SIX HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS
{$600.000) for two or more persons in any one occurrence, and auto property
damage insurance of at least FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($50.000) per
occurrence, with respect to each of Contractor’s owned, hired or non-owned
vehicles assigned to or used in performance of the Services. If the
Contractor has no owned automobiles, the requirements of this paragraph
shali be met by each officer or employee of the Contractor providing services
to the City of Brooklet under this contract.

Professional Liability coverage with minimum combined single limits of
ONE MILLION DOLLARS (51.000.000) each occumrence and TWO
MILLION DOLLARS ($2.000,000) aggregate.

The Contractor’s general liability insurance and automobile liability and physical
damage insurance shall be endorsed to include the City, and its elected and
appointed officers and employees, as additional insureds, unless the City in its
sole discretion waives such requirement. Every policy required above shall be
primary insurance, and any insurance carried by the City, its officers. or its
employees, shall be excess and not contributory insurance to that provided by the
Contractor. Such policies shall contain a severability of interests provision. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for any deductible losses under each of the
policies required above.



b
[9%

Certificates of insurance shall be provided by the Contractor as evidence that
policies providing the required coverages, conditions, and minimum limits are in
full force and effect, and shall be subject to review and approval by the City. No
required coverage shall be cancelled, terminated or materially changed until at
least 30 days prior written notice has been given to the City. The City reserves
the right to request and receive a certified copy of any policy and any
endorsement thereto.

7.4 Failure on the part of the Contractor to procure or maintain policies providing the
required coverages, conditions, and minimum limits shall constitute a material
breach of contract upon which the City may immediately terminate this
Agreement, or at its discretion may procure or renew any such policy or any
extended reporting period thereto and may pay any and all premiums in
connection therewith, and all monies so paid by the City shall be repaid by
Contractor to the City upon demand. or the City may offset the costof the
premiums against any monies due to Confractor from the City.

8.8  INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees to indemmify and hold
harmiess the City, and its elected and appointed officers and its employees, from and
against all Hability, claims, and demands, on account of any injury, loss, or damage.
which arise out of or are connected with the Services hereunder, if such injury, loss, or
damage is caused by the negligent act, omission, or other fault of the Contractor or anv
subcontractor of the Contractor, or any officer, emplovee, or agent of the Contractor or
any subcontractor, or any other person for whom Contractor is responsible. The
Contractor shall investigate, handle, respond to, and provide defense for and defend
against any such lability, claims. and demands. The Contractor shall further bear all
other costs and expenses incurred by the City or Contractor and related to any such
fiability, claims and demands. including but not limited to court costs. expert witness fees
and attornevs” fees if the court determines that these incurred costs and expenses are
related to such negligent acts. errors, and omissions or other fault of the Contractor. The
City shall be entitled to its costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in any action to enforce the
provisions of this Section 8.0. The Contractor’s indemnification obligation shall not be
construed to extend to any injury, loss, or damage which is caused by the act, omission,
or other fault of the City.



9.0

QUALITY OF WORK

Contractor’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the highest professional
workmanship and service standards in the field to the satisfaction of the City.

16.0

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

It is the expressed intent of the parties that the Contractor is an independent contractor
and not the agent, employee or servant of the City. and that:

16.1.

10.2.

ol

103,

10.4.

18.5,

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

CONTRACTOR SHALL SATISFY ALL TAX AND OTHER
GOVERNMENTALLY IMPOSED RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDING,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PAYMENT OF STATE, FEDERAL AND
SOCIAL SECURITY TAXES, UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES, WORKERS’
COMPENSATION AND SELF-EMPLOYMENT TAXES. NGO STATE,
FEDERAL OR LOCAL TAXES OF ANY KIND SHALL BE WITHHELD
OR PAID BY THE CITY.

PRC}VfBEB BY THF ihDFPFNHENT CONTRAC T{}R lE}R %QMF

ENTITY OTHER THAN THE CITY,

Contractor does not have the authority to act for the City, or to bind the City in
any respect whatsoever, or to incur any debts or liabilities in the name of or on
behalf of the City.

Contractor has and retains control of and supervision over the performance of
Contractor’s obligations hereunder and contrel over any persons emploved by
Contractor for performing the Services hereunder.

The City will not provide training or instruction to Contractor or any of ifs
emplovees regarding the performance of the Services hereunder.

Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers or emplovees will receive benefits of
any type from the City,

Contractor represents that it is engaged in providing similar services to other
clients and/or the general public and is not required to work exclusively for the
City.

All Services are to be performed solely at the risk of Contractor and Contractor
shall take all precautions necessary for the proper and sole performance thereof.



16.9.

119

Contractor will not combine ifs business operations in any way with the City’s
business operations and each party shall maintain their operations as separate and
distinet.

ASSIGNMENT

Contractor shall not assign or delegate this Agreement or any portion thereof, or any
monies due to or become due hereunder without the City’s prior written consent.

12.0

DEFAULT

Each and every term and condition hereof shall be deemed to be a material element of
this Agreement. In the event either party should fail or refuse to perform according to the
terms of this Agreement, such party may be declared in defauit.

13.0

13.1

13.2

~

13.3

14.0

TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated by either party for material breach or default
of this Agreement by the other party not caused by any action or omission of the
other party by giving the other party written notice at least thirty (30} days in
advance of the termination date. Termination pursuant to this subsection shall not
prevent either party from exercising any other legal remedies which may be
available to it

In addition to the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated by the Cify for its
convenience and without cause of any nature by giving written notice at least
fifteen (15) days in advance of the termination date. In the evemt of such
termination, the Contractor will be paid for the reasonable value of the Services
rendered to the date of termination, not to exceed a pro-rated daily rate, for the
Services rendered to the date of termination, and upon such payment, all
obligations of the City to the Contractor under this Agreement will cease.
Termination pursuant to this Subsection shall not prevent either party from
exercising any other legal remedies which may be available to it.

As provided in O.C.G.A § 36-60-13. the City Manager is designated by the City,
and consented to by the Contractor, as the agent authorized to terminate this
contract. It is agreed that termination may be done by the City Manager in writing
to Contractor without further action on the part of City Council.

INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The City and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books,
documents, papers, and records of the Contractor that are related to this Agreement for
the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and {ranscriptions.

15.0

DOCUMENTS

All computer mput and output, analyses, plans, documents photographic images. tests,
maps, surveys, electronic files and written material of any kind generated in the



performance of this Agreement or developed for the City in performance of the Services
are and shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the City. All such materials shall
be promptly provided to the City upon request therefor and at the time of termination of
this Agreement, without further charge or expense to the City and in hardcopy or an
electronic format acceptable to the City, or both, as the City shall determine. Contractor
shall not provide copies of any such material to any other party without the prior written
consent of the City. Contractor shall not use or disclose confidential information of the
City for purposes unrelated to performance of this Agreement without the City’s written
consent.

16.6 ENFORCEMENT

16,1 In the event that suit is brought upon this Agreement fo enforce is terms, the
parties shall each bear and be responsible for their own attorneys’” fees and court
costs.

16,2 This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the provisions
of Georgia law and the codes, resolutions and ordinances related to the services
covered herein. If there is a lawsuit with respect to the Agreement or any aspect
thereof, the Contractor agrees upon the City’s request to submit to the jurisdiction of
the courts of Bulloch Countyv. Georgia.

1760 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS; WORK BY ILLEGAL ALIENS
PROHIBITED

17.1  Contractor shall be solelv responsible for compliance with all applicable federal,
state, and local laws, including the ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations
of the City; and further including E-Verify and SAVE for payment of all
applicable taxes: and obtaining and keeping in force all applicable permits and
approvals. Contractor shall timely submit all forms and affidavits necessary to
comply with E-Verify and SAVE.

18.8 INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT

This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between the parties and there are no oral
or collateral agreements or understandings. This Agreement may be amended only by an
instrument in writing signed by the parties.

19.0  NOTICES

All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
given by hand delivery, by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, registered or
certified. return receipt requested, by national overnight carrier, or by facsimile
transmission, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the following address:



If to the City:

City of Brooklet

At City Manager

104 Church St.
Brooklet, Georgia 30415
Telephone:

Fax:

If to the Contractor:

Any such notice or other communication shall be effective when received as indicated on
the delivery receipt, if by hand delivery or overnight carrier; on the United States mail
return receipt, if by United States mail; or on facsimile transmission receipt. Either party
may by similar notice given, change the address to which future notices or other
communications shall be sent.

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the day
and vear of signed by the City.

CITY OF Brooklet,
a Georgia home rule municipal corporation

By:

Mayor
Alttest:

City Clerk
Date:
CONTRACTOR:
By:
Title:

Date:




Exhibit A — Scope of Services

Preparation Checklist for Completion of Sample Independent Contractor
Agreement

NOTE: This Checklist Page is for the City’s internal use only and should not be included
as part of the final contract

Title Block:

- Insert Contactor Name

- Insert Type of Services
First Paragraph:

- Insert Contractor Name

- If Contractor is an entity. insert state of organization and entity type
Section 3

- Insert name of City project manager in two places in Section 5.1

- Insert name of Contractor project manager in two places in Section 5.2
Section 6:

- Insert dates for term of Agreement; the comumencement date generally
should not be prior to the date the City intends to sign the Agreement

Section 19

- Insert contact information for Contractor

Signature Page:
- Complete signature block for Contractor Exhibit A:

- Add the Scope of Services; ensure the Seope of Services accurately, clearly
and specifically lists all of the work to be completed by the Contractor.

- Ensure Exhibit A includes timeframes for completion of the Services. If
the Services include several tasks with several completion deadlines,
ensure all deadlines are included in Exhibit A,

- Ensure Exhibit A includes the not-to-exceed contract price; also, if the
Services are compensated on an hourly, per-task or per-unit basis, ensure
Exhibit A sets for the agreed upon rates. task or unit pricing.






City of Brooklet 2019 SPLOST Update

L. On November 6, 2018, the Bulloch Co. voters approved the 2019 SPLOST referendum, with
the voters approving the following City of Brooklet projects:

Public safety facilities/equipment $172,000 24% of total
Recreation facilities/equipment $290,000 41% of total
Water capital outlay/equipment $254,000 35% of total
Total $716,000 100%

I 2019 to date revenues $1,344,786.53
f. 2019 to date projects revenues and expenditures:

Police revenues $322,748.77
Police expenditures $314,226.67
Balance +5 8,522.10
Recreation revenues $551,362.67
Recreation expenses 0
Water revenues $470,675.39
Water expenditures $538,201.24
Balance -$67,685.85
V. Projected revenues to be received now through Oct. 2025.
$332,738.14
V. Projected additional project revenues:
Police $79,857.15
Recreation $136,425.64
Water $116,458.35
Vi Total amount earmarked but not spent:
1. SEID water line extension project $113,564.18
2. P-25 Radio system access — police $6,121.92

Total $119,686.10



VIi. Total projected projects revenue and expenditures:

Police total projected revenue $402,605.92

Total projected expenditures $320,344.59

Balance +582,257.33
Recreation total projected revenue $687,785.12
Water total projected revenue $587,133.74
Total projected expenses $648,825.42
Total water revenue shortfall -$61,691.68

NOTE: The Bulloch Co./cities intergovernmental agreement for 2019 SPLOST states that excess
proceeds may be used for any purpose legally allowable to be funded by ad valorem tax
revenues. Under Georgia law, ad valorem tax revenues may be used for water/sewer projects.

RECOMMENDATION: Use excess revenue over the required $290,000 for Recreation for water
Projects. This would add $397,785.15 in additional projected water revenue.



City of Brooklet 2023 TSPLOST Update

I TSPLOST revenues and expenditures from 2023 to date.

Total Revenue $2,304,000.00

Total Expenditures $427,253.85

Balance $1,876,746.15
i Total amount earmarked but not spent.

1. 2024 Brooklet Street improvements $370,824.60

2. North Cromley Tap project $1,328,775.35

Total $1,699,599.95

1. Projected revenue projections through 2027. $2,094,777.14
V. Total current and projected unobligated revenue. $2,697,632.39

NOTE: TSPLOST funds must be spent only on projects that are allowable TSPLOST project
categories.

Prepared by City Clerk & City Manager






State of Georgia

)

County of Bulloch
)

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Water and Sewer Service Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered
intothis ___dayof ____, 2024by and between WATERFORD INVESTMENT
HOLDINGS, INC., a Georgia corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Developer"), a
resident of the State of Georgia, and the City of Brooklet, Georgia (hereinafter referred
to as the "the City"), a municipal corporation having a principal place of business at
114 W. Lane Street, Brooklet, Georgia 30415.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Developer is the developer of approximately 77.63 acres (said
77.63 acres of real property shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Property”) (County
tax map 136, parcel 22) located at Highway 80 East, Bulloch County, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, Shelton Hughes is the record owner of the Property but has
contracted to sell the Property to Developer; and

WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement shall become effective and binding
upon execution hereof by the parties hereto and upon transfer of title to the Property to

Developer if fitle transfers to the Developer within 9o days of the date this Agreement is

approved by the Brogklet City Council (hereinafter the “Effective Date™); and

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the City's corporate boundaries; and
WHEREAS, Developer plans to develop a residential subdivision comprised of

Page 1 of 2



detached single family houses on the Property consisting of up to 198 residential or

equivalent residential units, as shown on the attached Preliminary Plat entitled
“Brooklet Residential Preliminary Plat”, prepared by Hussey Gay Bell and dated May
30, 2024* and

WHEREAS, the Developer desires that the City serve the Property with potable
water and sanitary sewer services; and

WHEREAS, in order to serve the Property with potable water and sanitary sewer
services, the City's existing water and sanitary sewer systems will require certain
additions, extensions, improvements, and/or modifications by-the-Cityand by the
Developer (all additions, extensions, improvements, modifications and all related
infrastructure and equipment contemplated herein are collectively referred to as the
“Systems”, and all work related to the design, installation and construction of the
Systems is collectively referred to as the "Project™); and

WHEREAS, Developer desires certain commitments from-the Cityin regard to the
Systems; and

WHEREAS, the City finds that the provision of potable water and sanitary sewer
services to the Property is consistent with and in furtherance of the goals and purposes
of the City, and is in the public interest;-Cityshall provide areasonableconnection-
peintforpotablewater-at-or nearto-the intersection-of Cromley Road-and U.S- Highway
8o—Gity-shall provide-a-reasonable-connecton point for sanitary-sewerat ernearto-the-
intersection-of Cone-Avenue MN-ond U8 Highway-80-; and

* The Brooklet Residential Preliminary Plat attached hereto is a preliminary plat and is coneeptual in
nature and is subject to change upon the City's review. Final approved plat shall be required before
construction commences.

Page 2 of 2



WHEREAS, the Developer shall be prohibited from conneéting more than 50
residential units to the City water and sewer systems per calendar year swith-unused-

unless otherwise

agreed upon by a writing approved by the City Council and the Developer;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual
covenants and agreements herein made, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, the City and Developer hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Obligations and additional recitals of the. Parties.

The recitals listed above are essential terms to this Agreement and are hereby
incorporated by reference.
1.1 General

Developer shall ensure the Project and Systems conform to local, state and
federal regulations at the time of permitting.

To serve the Property and adjacent tracts designated Map & Parcel Numbers: 136

000024 000 and 136 000024 001 (the “Adjacent Tracts”) with potable water, the City

will require an increase in its groundwater withdrawal permit from EPD. The City’s

obligations in this Agreement shall terminate if EPD declines to provide the increase

needed to provide the Property and Adjacent Tracts with the estimated 730 equivalent

residential units they require.

To serve the Property and Adjacent Tracts with sanitary sewer, the City will

require funding from a bond. If the bond is not issued for any reason, the City’s

obligations in this Agreement shall terminate.

If Developer subsequently decides to not develop the Property into a subdivision

Page 3 of 2



of residential detached single-family residences, the City’s obligations under this

Agreement shall terminate.

1.2 Project Engineer

Developer has retained a competent professional engineer, registered in the State
of Georgia (“the Project Engineer”) to prepare the engineering design for the Systems.
1.3 City's Engineer

The City shall retain a competent professional engineer registered in the State of
Georgia (“the City's Engineer”) to perform the reviews and inspections described in this
Agreement. The City's Engineer shall not be an employee, partner or co-worker of the
Project Engineer, nor shall he or she hold a financial interest in the firm at which the
Project Engineer is employed.
1.4 Costs

All design, construction, engineering, inspection, and testing costs, and all other
costs of any kind incurred in connection with the design and construction of the
Systems, and all costs incurred in complying with the provisions of this Agreement
shall be borne by the Developer.
1.5 Pre-construction Phase

Prior to commencement of construction of the Systems, the City's Engineer shall
review the plat(s), plans, and any other documents reasonably deemed necessary by the

City's Engineer to confirm that the Systems as designed will meet the applicable

specifications, regulations, and standards, and that the Systems are designed in

accordance with this Agreement. The Project Engineer shall cooperate with the City’s

Engineer to include providing all documents reasonably requested by the City’s

Page 4 of 2



Engineer. If construction of the Systems commences before the City's Engineer has
issued written confirmation that the Systems as designed will meet the City's
specifications, regulations, and standards, the City's obligations under this Agreement
shall terminate and Developer's rights under this Agreement shall be forfeited.

Developer acknowledges and agrees that the Systems described herein shall be

designed, sized, and constructed so that they are connectable to and capable of

providing adequate pressure and flow to the anticipated residential development on the

adjacent tracts designated Map & Parcel Numbers: 136 000024 000 and 136 000024

001 (the “Adjacent Tracts”). Developer warrants that its Project Engineer will cooperate

with the owner(s) of the Adjacent Tracts to ensure the Systems are designed, sized and

constructed in such a manner to meet the water and sanitary sewer requirements of the

Adjacent Tracts.

The Project Engineer shall provide the City’s Engineer with the pressure and flow

requirements for the potable water portion of the Systems, which requirements shall be

adequate to serve the Property and the Adjacent Tracts. The Project Engineer shall

provide the City’s Engineer with the gallons per minute of sanitary sewer that will be

required to serve the Property and the Adiacent Tracts. The City’s obligations in this

Agreement shall terminate if the City’s Engineer determines thatthe City is unable to

provide the necessary potable water pressure and flow requirements or unable to

accommodate the required gallons per minute for sanitary sewer service.

Upon the City Engineer’s certification that the foregoing requirements set forth in

this Section 1.5 have been satisfied, and that any other conditions precedent have been

resolved, the City shall provide a reasonable connection point for potable water service

to the Property at or near the intersection of Cromley Road and U.S. Highway 80. The

Page 5 of 2



City shall provide a reasonable connection point for sanitary sewer service to the

Property at or near to the intersection of Cone Avenue N and U.S: Highway 80.

1.6 Construction Phase

Developer acknowledges and agrees that it is prohibited from connecting more

than 50 residential units to the City water and sewer systems per calendar year.

Developer shall be responsible to provide periodic construction observation on
behalf of the Project Engineer during construction of the Systems.

If the location, design or installation of the Systems materially deviates from the
items noted on the approved plans and specifications the Developer provided to the City
prior to commencement of construction, the Developer shall immediately notify the
City's Engineer of the material deviation and shall submit a revised plat(s) to the City's
Engineer which reflects the material deviation. Construction of a;ly material deviation
shall not proceed until the City's Engineer has issued written confirmation that design of
the Systems as modified will meet the City's specifications, regulations, and standards.
Developer shall reimburse the City for the cost of the City's Engineer's review of the
revised plat(s) described in this paragraph in the amount specified in the City’s Fee
Schedule. “he Sxstermonrevid ed-hereln-shallbe-connesiable to-theresidential
develepmeniten-the adiacent-ivasis-designated Map & Darcel MNusnbers: 136-500824-
660-and-136-000024-001- '

1.7 Upon completion of construction

After construction of the Systems is complete, Developer shall provide to the
City a statement from the Project Engineer certifying that the materials and

workmanship of the Systems constructed, including without limitation pipes, bedding,

Page 6 of 2



restraints, valves, fire hydrants, manholes, lift station equipment and other related
materials and work has been constructed in general accordance with the plans that
were approved by the City's Engineer during the Pre-Construction Phase (or, if
applicable, approved by the City's Engineer during the Construction Phase). Upon
request of the City or City's Engineer, Final Project Approval shall be contingent
upon the Project Engineer's substantiation by material affidavits from suppliers and
by applicable test results for inflow/infiltration, exfiltration, deflection, pressure,
leaks, bacteria, compaction and any other tests reasonably required by the City or
City's Engineer if and when these are requested. Such tests shall be included in the
Project specifications to include air testing, mandrel test, pressure test and
chlorination

Further, after construction of the Systems is complete, Developer shall provide
to the City recordable plai(s) in recordable form in a format agreeable to the City
showing the location of all public easements and/or rights-of—wa.y owned or to be
owned by the City. Developer shall provide separate recordable plats for each Phase.
Should the Developer fail to provide the plat(s), the City shall not authorize a building

permit or water meter to any property to be served by the Systems, nor will the City
accept dedication of the Systems.
1.8 Dedication for acceptance by the City.

Upon:

(a) Developer's completion of construction of the Systems and all

related facilities;

(b) Developer's provision of the bond/security referenced in Sec.

Page 7 of 2



2 of this Agreement;
() Developer's provision of "record” arawings per City specifications;=
(@ if any portion of the Systems to be dedicated to the City are
located in property or rights-of-way not owned by the City, Developer's
provision to the City of easements adequate to enable the City to operate and
maintain the Systems in perpetuity?; easemenisfor-walerand-sewershall be-
15 ingluding avessviinis-thewzht slmy and-common-areasfo be-dedicnted
(e) ifany portion of the Systems are located in property or rights of
way owned by a government entify other than the City, Developer's provision
to the City of written confirmation approved and executed by the governing
body of that government entity that the City shall be the owner of the Systems
if the City accepts dedication thereof;
63) Developer's submission to the City of a written request that it
accept dedication of the Systems; and
(g the Projects Engineer's certification:
i). that the Systems have been constructed in general
accordance with the plans(s) that were approved by the
City's Engineer during the Pre-Construction Phase (or, if
applicable, during the Construction Phase);
i)).  that the Systems are adequately designed, and conform

to the applicable local, state and federal standards,

2 Easements for water and sewer shall be 15’ including areas within the right-of-way and common areas to_
be dedicated to the City.

Page 8 of 2



specifications, and regulations;

iii).  that all documents Developer or the Project Engineer
were required to submit under thi§ Agreement have
been submitted; and

iv.) that the easements are adequate to enable the City to
operate and maintain all portions of the Systems to be
dedicated to the City,

The Mayor and Council shall, subject to approval of the City's Engineer, enter
into a Utility Systems Dedication Agreement with the Developer to accept title to, and
assume responsibility for maintenance and operation of, those portions of the
Systems that are located within public easements and rights--of-way. The City will only
accept dedication of those portions of the Systems that are located within public
easements and rights-of-way for which the City has an express, recorded right of
access and maintenance, which acceptance shall include all rights, title and interest
that the Developer has in the Systems serving the Property and also all easements
and/or rights-of-way required for the purpose of operation and maintenance thereof.
Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the City from accepting dedication of the

Systems in phases.

SECTION 2. Bond/Security.

For all of the Systems that Developer seeks to dedicate to the City, it shall

provide a bond. The bond shall be available for a one year period from the date on

which the City Council approves-the-final plataccepts dedication of that portion of the

Systems. In the event any portion(s) of the Systems accepted by the City fails or

Page 9 of 2



malfunctions in any way due to material or workmanship within one year of the City's
acceptance of dedication of the same, the City shall have the right to reimbursement of
all costs to repair the same through the bond if the failure or maifunction is attributable
to the action(s) or inaction(s) of the Developer or its agents, employees, contractors,

or subcontractors. Developer shall be liable for reimbursement of all costs not paid

through the bond. TheWasranty bBond shall be 10% of the value of all dedicated

infrastructure. The value shall be approved by the City’s Engineet and the bond shall be

in the form of cash, Letter of Credit or surety bond from an insurance company having a

rating of AA or better.

SECTION 3. Term.

The Developer shall commence construction of the Systems within one year of

issuance of a land disturbance permit for this Project.and shall not
permit a one (1) year period in which no construction of the Systems eceuzroccurs.
Developer shall be in default hereof if it fails to cure same within sixty (60) calendar days
following receipt of written notice thereof from the City.

Treily chall biingwaierend severlinevaththe-sopecidesio-sendeedhe-
Erojcctistacpropersrinaeithe Rrajscota polntmuiualiy agreed-upon by Clsrand -
Developerby-Januaryi-2626=Provided that the applicable terms of this Agreement

have been satisfied, the City shall provide a reasonable connection point for potable

water service to the Property at or near the intersection of Cromley Road and U.S.

Highway 80, and shall provide a reasonable connection point for sanitary sewer

service to the Property at or near the intersection of Cone Avenue N and U.S.

Highway 80, on or before August 1, 2026.

Page 10 of 2



SECTION 4. Fees.

As development proceeds under the terms of this Agreement, and at the time
of issuance of each meter, and as a condition precedent to issuance of the same,
Developer shall be charged and shall pay:

(@) a sanitary sewer capital cost recovery fee for each residential or

equivalent residential unit (“ERU”) in the amount of £$7,200.00_

per ERU3;

(b) a water capital cost recovery fee for each residential or

equivalent residential unit in the amount of £$1,600.00 per
ERUY; and

(c) a water meter installation fee paid for each r.esidential or
equivalent residential unit based on those fees in effect at the
time of the water and/or sewer connection.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if, after 4 years from the Effective Date,

Developer has not paid fees for all 198 ERU’s allocated under this Agreement, the City

shall have the right to adjust the sanitary sewer and water capital cost recovery fees, but

such adjusted fees shall not exceed the amount charged to properties located within the

corporate boundaries of the City of Brooklet. A monthly water and sewer user fee will

then apply according to usage and current rates. No water meter will be issued or
installed until all applicable fees are paid.

SECTION 65. No right to reimbursement.

Developer acknowledges and agrees that to the extent any of the Systems

constitute extensions of City water or sewer infrastructure, such extensions will serve the

Page 11 of 2



Property and the adjeining propertrio-the-nerth-recent i7—adjacent

tracts designated Map & Parcel Numbers: 1

136 000024 000 and 136 000024 001 (the “Adjacent

Tracts”). Therefore, Developer acknowledges and agrees that it shall have no right to
reimbursement of its expenditures from the City or from any funds or accounts owned

or maintained by the City.

SECTION 6z. Compliance with Laws.
Developer shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and
regulations.

SECTION 8. Governing Law: Forum Selection.

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Georgia. Any action arising from this Agreement shall

be filed in the Superior Court of Bulloch County.

SECTION 89. Entire Agreement.
Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations,

inducements, promises, or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made by any

party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, that are not embodied in this Agreement,
and that no other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement

shall be valid or binding.

SECTION ogie. Modification of Agsreement.

Any modification or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding only if
reduced to writing and approved and executed by the Parties to this Agreement.

SECTION 10i. No Waiver.

The failure of either party to this Agreement to insist upon the performance of any

Page 12 of 2



ofthe terms and conditions of this Agreement, or the waiver of any breach of any of the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, shall not be construed as thereafter waiving any
such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and

effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.

SECTION 112. Effect of Partial Invalidity.

If any one or more of the provisions contained herein is held by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect for any
reason, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other
provision hereof, and this Agreement will be construed as if such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable provision had never been contained herein unless the intent of this
Agreement cannot be carried out in the absence of such provision. In this regard, the
provisions of Section 6, titled "No right to reimbursement" is a material provision for
which the intent of this Agreement cannot be carried out in its absence.

SECTION 123. Paragraph Headings.

The headings and subheadings within this Agreement are solely for the
convenience of the parties and shall not be construed to modify, explain, or aid in the
interpretation of this Agreement.

SECTION 134. Notices.
Any notice provided for or concerning this Agreement shall be in writing and

shall be deemed sufficiently given upon receipt by certified or registered mail or hand

delivery as follows:

If to the City: City of Brooklet
City Manager
14 W. Lane Street
Brooklet, GA 30415

Page 13 of 2



If to the Developer: Waterford Investment Holdings, Inc.

SECTION 145. Indemnity

Developer acknowledges and agrees that the work it performs under this
Agreement is performed by it and those it retains for its sole benefit. Developer
therefore covenants not to sue and agrees to hold the City harmless for any claims
and damages allegedly incurred as a result of the work contemplated hereunder due
to negligence on the part of Developer, including without limitation work associated
with the tie-in to existing City water systems and sanitary sewer systems. Developer
further covenants and agrees that the City shall not be liable to Developer for any
damages, whether general, special, or consequential, and whether for economic losses,
diminution in value, or in any other form.

SECTION 1z6. Assisnment.

This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred in whole or in part by the

Developer unless: (1) the assignee owns the Property and assumes all obligations of Developer

under this Agreement; and (2) the City provides prior written approval of the assignment, which

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. Failure to obtain the City's

approval of any assignment of this Agreement shall terminate the City's obligations and shall

forfeit the Developer's rights hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the City does not act on

Developer’s written request for approval of an assignment within 45 days of the date such notice
is provided, the City shall be deemed to have approved the assignment. previded-anyr-Assignee-

Page 14 of 2



This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
successors and assigns.

SECTION 152z Construction of Agreement.

The Parties acknowledge that each party has participated in the negotiation and
preparation of this Agreement. This Agreement therefore shall be construed without
regard to any presumption or other statute or rule of law requiring construction against
the party causing the Agreement to be drafted.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly
enacted by their proper officers and so attest with their corporate seals affixed hereto set

forth in duplicate originals.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF CITY WATERFORD INVESTMENT
OF BROOKLET HOLDINGS, INC.
By: By:
L. W. Gwinnett, Jr., Mayor JASON T. FRANKLIN, President
Attest: Attest:
Lori Phillips, Clerk JOEY COTY, Secretary

[corporate seal]

Page 15 of 2






STATE OF GEORGIA
CITY OF BROOKLET
RESOLUTION # 2024-___

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BROOKLET, GEORGIA TO RESERVE
SANITARY SEWER TAPS AND TO IMPOSE A LIMITATION ON THE
NUMBER OF SANITARY SEWER TAPS THAT MAY BE ISSUED PER YEAR

WHEREAS, the City of Brooklet (the “City”) and the surrounding region have
experienced rapid residential, commercial, and industrial growth and development
during the preceding five years;

WHEREAS, it is widely accepted that such growth and development will continue for
the foreseeable future;

WHEREAS, the City is engaged in efforts to provide sanitary sewer services to
customers;

WHEREAS, the City anticipates that it will secure 300,000 gallons per day (1,000
equivalent residential units (“ERU’s”)) of sanitary sewer treatment capacity by the year
2026;

WHEREAS, it is necessary to manage, monitor, and limit the issuance of new sewer
taps to ensure the City is capable of providing services to new developments, and to
prevent overflows, backups, and environmental damage;

WHEREAS, the City is mindful that aging and poorly maintained septic systems can
contaminate groundwater and that sanitary sewer is the preferred means for wastewater
management when available;

WHEREAS, limiting the number of sewer taps issued per year will allow for the orderly
expansion of the City’s sanitary sewer system and will enable the City to provide services
to an expanded population;

WHEREAS, the limitations imposed by this Resolution are reasonably necessary and
in the best interests of the public health, safety, and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the interests of the general citizenry of the City shall be served by
reserving sewer taps for residential and commercial properties with existing septic
systems and by limiting the number of sewer taps that may be issued per year.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BROOKLET, GEORGIA IN A REGULAR



MEETING ASSEMBLED AND PURSUANT TO LAWFUL AUTHORITY
THEREOF, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Including any sewer taps allocated pursuant to a valid agreement
approved by the City, the City shall issue no more than one hundred (100)
sanitary sewer taps per year up to a total of 728 such taps. For purposes of this
Resolution, a year will be deemed to begin on the effective date of this Resolution
and continue for 365 days thereafter. Further, for purposes of this Resolution, a
sanitary sewer tap shall be equivalent to one ERU, which is 300 gallons per day of

capacity.

Section 2. Notwithstanding the limitation imposed by Section 1 of this
Resolution, the City hereby reserves all remaining sanitary sewer capacity, which
is currently anticipated to total 272 ERU’s, for issuance to applicants who seek
sanitary sewer service for a lot of record existing as of the effective date of this
Resolution. For purposes of this Resolution, a “lot of record” shall mean a lot
which is part of a subdivision properly recorded in the office of the Clerk of the
Superior Court of Bulloch County, or a parcel described by metes and bounds, the
description of which has been properly recorded in the office of the Clerk of the
Superior Court of Bulloch County.

Section 3. The limitations imposed by this Resolution shall terminate on the
earliest of: (a) five years from the date of this Resolution; (b) the date of any
official action by the City Council to terminate this Resolution; or (c) the date on
which the City lacks sufficient sanitary sewer capacity to issue taps.

Section 4. All ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption
by the City Council.

SO RESOLVED this day of September, 2024.

CITY OF BROOKLET

L.W. (Nicky) Gwinnett, Jr.
Mayor
ATTEST:




Lori Phillips, City Clerk






HMGP 4400 City of Brooklet Total Project Costs

. Pre-Aw | Shipping Fuel Concrete 1:4_.3_. mmn:_n.< Transfer .qomm_ FEMA State Local
Location ard and Generator Tank Pad for Initial Switch and Project shafe shiare Shafe
Costs | Installation Generator | Testing Connections Costs

1l House #1 (50kW Fixed
1erator) <8 18 340,368 S 350 550,036.00/537,527.00($5,003.60| $7,505.40
ice/EOC (50kW Fixed
nerator) $9,318 $33,473 S 350 543,141.00/$32,355.75($4,314.10 mm.md.pm
al S0 $18,636| $73,841 S0 $700 S0 $0(693,177.00(569,882.75 mw.wuw.wc‘muwqu.mm

Q:%.@ Souwrce &






v MO PN O D O @) o=}
o G MMM SBTISE O 1D o o
s ] . P T S T T T S ) . » . . .
@] Q OWANMNDM-M 10 ) N 1y in
m N SPOIFNADOWOW <t O e . o o
< ol I e (M i o~ (@]
ot N N
SA
)] RO IO .
& (501 hTaaT e ToNPRITe Tt -1
= R [P N L T I .Au
1 hM..W OVOIROINCO N fr] F
ja ¥} PP - LU < ) Q
5 Ty "
= 9 {
w Y, b o] ’
e fx} & )
(] 9] -
O o} 3 i Z
44 QOO -t N W X facfiss
3 ¥Wom @y 5 ;3
4 ' 4 Pt Xy
- Ordet o xe
o Il Ny ]
GONTHTIL [y
w1 NN A o |
L 1 3
o b
3 e
4 =]
2 .
o * x
®
-}
] "
SPOMICI =13 o) vy N
£+ ORI ol
E+fx] o OE—PI O Dt
x ] o el el et N et o N o) 0y )
* G - 0] et BERGD) S~ Y
NGB 43 0 OV £ M
%S (61 - SN OOOP O ~N D
jeloly - » CIOIONONONM EL O O wn
[(F3e'% ««) 4 S0 (W lcalenTabtesTap ¥ WS N
XD O Qo W O
ol 0 0 & OMEBMEENNLI >0
LW ]E3Th o V] O HODOQOLAD REFITI]
2O o] U R pHREERENER BTN
] - 0 0N m f] B
> O D mlefededeh-teiOQsr XD a0
¥ s ] o O ©n Z00
¥ O QL nevy) Q n 4
* Ldeed £24] o w v {x
DNT O - oM >
m oY, 0 0D % I+ A > O
m el @ LOOOOQOOOM  EOMOM
Q > OOZ w1 LOOCOOOOOE  KOUIOE
o] -t % OOCIOCIOO DO
o+t ! OOORROQOOD o O
w 1] [olelelwlolelele] (e T







SR 3-669266

INVOICE
GEORGIA  novpes: msetem

EQUIPMENT co 389 Meadowake Piwy  [nioe Daer (o702
Swainsboro, GA 30401 9/10/2024

georgiaequipment.com fgrd,erTems."' S Ton
PO#  [566
Dublin - 478-275-0050 Swainsboro - 478-237-5848 Statesboro - 912-764-5444 [jop i

Processed: | |8/28/2024 2:40 PM

Customer Information

CITY OF BROOKLET
P.O BOX 67
Brooklet, GA 30415
Ship VIA Customer Drivers License \Work Phone # Cell Phone #
(912) 842-2137 (912) 5314726
Cusiomer# |Authorized Contact Name Contact Phone # Sales Person Name Employee Name
29228 BRigdon
Description [QyOut] Qy.in | Daly | Weeky | Montly | PerUni |jaxable] Exiended
EXCAVATOR 26 YANMAR DIESEL 1 1 $220.00 $775.00 $2000.00 $2000.00 ]v $2000.00
ltem ID: 1806-3 <<— Rental —>>
Rent Date: 7/31/2024 2:41 PM
Serial: YMRVIO25JNAJAG774
Fuel Charges: 0.000 @ $6.00 $0.00
Interval Charges - Out: 533.600 - in: 593.600 - Used: 0.000 0.000 Units Billed @ $27.50 $0.00

<<< CYCLE BILLED FOR 07/31/2024 THROUGH 08/28/2024 >>>

Order Notes: ]

12" bucket
912-531-4726
called 8/28 -- need for another 2 weeks

Order Terms: 1

1 DAY/WKD RENTAL = 8 hours running time WEEKEND RENTAL is duc in by 9:00AM Monday.
1 WEEK RENTAL= 40 hours running time. EACH ADDITIONAL HOUR over the daily rate is 1/8 of the daily rate
1 MONTH RENTAL = 120 hours running time. 1 MONTH RENTAL = 28 days.

Renter is responsible for all damages, this includes tires, tracks, hoses, belts, scratchs, dents, dings and can be charged to the card on file.
____Customer MUST CALL Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental, Inc /Georgia Equipment Statesboro, for pick-ups and is responsible for the equipment until it is returned or picked up by Georgia Equipment Saies &
Rentzl, inc/Georgia Equipment Statesboro and a retumn slip is issued.

____Customer is responsible for flat tires, fuel, frequently checking for safely adjustments, maintaining proper fuel levels and greasing equipment.

____Customer is responsible for contacting Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental, Inc/Georgia Equipment Statesboro immediately with any problems or if equipment does not function properly.

____Equipment with excessive mud and or other debris will be assessed a $100 cleaning fee.

Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental, Inc/Georgia Equipment Statesboro is not responsible for time not used due to weather and full rental rate will be paid by the customer.

OSHA Compliance Because Lessor has no control of the use of the rented items, Lessor specifically disclaims liability for non-compliance with any Occupational Safety & Health Administration Act (“OSHA")
Requirements «

Liability insurance: Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental Inc/Georgia Equipment Statesboro may require proof of insurance for the time the Lessee has possession of the rented items

IF OTHER THAN LESSEE, SIGNER REPRESENTS HE IS AGENT OF AND AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR LESSEE.

BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT CUSTOMER IS AGREEING TO LET GEORGIA EQUIPMENT SALES & RENTAL, INC OR GEORGIA EQUIPMENT STATESBORO CHARGE ANY AND ALL INCIDENTAL
CHARGE PURSUANT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS TO THE CREDIT CARD NUMBER PROVIDED BY CUSTOMER.

GOVERNING LAW & JURISDICTION: This Agreement shall be subject to, construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of Georgia without regard to its conflicts of laws and provisions. | understand that I,
am responsible for the entire account. | shall pay all monies to Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental or Georgia Equipment Statesboro.

| hereby certify that | have read and received a completed copy of this agreement and all its provisions. (located on the back)

- HOURS: 500 Rental Charges: $2,000.00
Monday - Friday 7:30am - 5:00pm % = et
Saturday 7:30am - Noon Dekvery Charg% ; $25.00
X Closed Sundays Rental Surcharge:  {$200.00
Customer Signature {Sub Total: $2,225.00
Tax: TR, $0.00
Customer Name (Printed) Date Order T?ﬁi: $2,225.00
Amount Paid: $0.00
AmountBue:  [$2,225.00

[TaxExemptID;  [CITY

Thank You For Your Business!
Revision: 5 Revised By: Rshirley Closed By:BRigdon Printed: Wednesday, August 28, 2024 2:40 PM Converted from Rsrv on 7/31/2024 2:42:00 PM Page 10f 1



|7 3-669266-2

INVOICE
GEDHG'A Remit all payments to: [Rent Date: 8/28/2024 7:30 AM
EGUIPMENT oo 389 W. Meadowlake Pkwy |Relum Date:  [9/10/2024 4:45 PM

Swainsboro, GA 30401

- . Inveice Date: 0/10/2024
georgiaequipment.com Payment Diie. | 10/10/2024

, , ) Order Terms;  {Net 10th
Dublin - 478-275-0050 Swainshoro - 478-237-5848 Statesboro - 912-764-5444 55 566

Job #;
Proeesaed 9/10/2024 4:51 PM

Customer information

CITY OF BROOKLET
P.O BOX 67
Brooklet, GA 30415 .
Ship VIA Customer Drivers License Work Phone # Cell Phone #
: (912) 842-2137 (912) 5314726
Customer # Authorized Contact Name Contact Phone # Sales Person Name 3 Emrm
29228 BRigdon
Descrption ; | Giyout | Qty.in | Daily i Weekly |  Monthly Por Uni Famﬂll W
EXCAVATOR 26 YANMAR DIESEL 1 1 $220.00 $775.00 - $2000.00 $1550.00 ‘v $1550.00
ltem ID: 1806-3 <<— Rental —>>
Rent Date: 8/28/2024 7:30 AM Return Date: 9/10/2024 4:49 PM
Serial: YMRVIO25IJNAJAG774
Fuel Charges: 0.000 @ $6.00 $0.00
Interval Charges - Out: 533.600 - in: 603.600 - Used: 10.000 0.000 Units Billed @ $27.50 $0.00
Order Notes: g
12" bucket
912-5314726
called 8/28 — need for another 2 weeks
Order Terms: i!
1 PAY/WKD RENTAL - 8 hours running time WEEKEND RENTAL is duc in by ‘};()l)AM Monday.
1 WEEK RENTAL= 40 hours running time. EACH ADDITIONAL HOUR over the daily rate is 178 of the daily rate

1 MONTH RENTAL = 120 hours running time.

Renter is responsibie for all damages, this include
. Customer MUST CALL Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental, Inc /Ga
Rental, inc/Georgia Equipment Statesboro and a ratumn skip is issusd.
____Customer is responsibie for flat tires, fuel, fraquenti 8 fustments, mat
_...Customer is responsible for contacting Georgia Equip ) inc/Georgia Equ
__Equipment with excessive mud and or other debris wi ssessed a $100 claaning fee.
Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental, Inc/Georgia Equipment Statesboro is not responsibie for time not used due to weather and full rental rate will be paid by the customer.

OSHA Compliance Because Lessor has no control of the use of the rented items, Lessor specifically disclaims liability for non-compliance with any Occupational Safety & Health Administration Act (“OSHA')
Requirements

Liability Insurance: Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental Inc/Georgia Equipment Statesboro may require proof of insurance for the time the Lessee has possession of the rented items

IF OTHER THAN LESSEE, SIGNER REPRESENTS HE IS AGENT OF AND AUTHORIZED TO SIGN FOR LESSEE.

BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT CUSTOMER IS AGREEING TO LET GEORGIA EQUIPMENT SALES & RENTAL, INC OR GEORGIA EQUIPMENT STATESBORO CHARGE ANY AND ALL INCIDENTAL
CHARGE PURSUANT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS TO THE CREDIT CARD NUMBER PROVIDED BY CUSTOMER.

GOVERNING LAW & JURISDICTION: This Agreement shall be subject to, construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of Georgia without regard to its conflicts of laws and provisions. | understand that |,
am responsible for the entire account. | shall pay all monies to Georgia Equipment Sales & Rental or Georgia Equipment Statesboro.

| hereby certify that | have read and received a completed copy of this agreement and all its provisions. (located on the back)

1 MONTH RENTAIL 28 days.

belts. scratc

. , dings and can be charged to the card on file.
pick-ups

ar the equipment until & is returned or picked up by Georgia Equipment Sales &

1d greasing squipmsnt.
ately with any problems or if equipment does not function property.

HOURS: Eental Charges: $1,550.00
Monday - Friday 7:30am - 5:00pm ’ -
Soturday 7-30am » Noon | Rental Surcharge:  [$155.00
X Closed Sundays 5B Total $1,705.00
Customer Signature ax: $0.00
Order Total: $1,705.00
Customer Name (Printed) Date Amowﬂaﬁ: $0.00
Amount Due: $1,705.00

{Tax Exempt ID: ey

Thank You For Your Business!
Revision: 4 Revised By: Rshirley Closed By:Rshirley Printed: Tuesday, September 10, 2024 4:51 PM Page 1of 1






; | | (a12) 5-~0110

’ 'Te,r@ M".\?\d\ Cc.mc(clrc LLC‘7> 2¢¢ Chi€ Yen Qd

| | hobeshbre Ga 30445
l @,-’cj of Breaklel Ga

| Seb Lecabion - Ranlcoad B
| ( |
: lb(‘K‘L Cemope, Coment ond Pous vack

ek M Cement and Pour back
,; S lev el of (oad
HO " gour bady © doo

Cox T Veadet e\ opand dechn
10\ & Cotnes of (ﬁ\\FCA&\S\~ Qm\"fu.(m% S)r,

- Yoxd :
| “oral 500,00

EW‘ S‘d\ :he_(r\j {h\\&t\( {:-lgb@@ mos\\ - Cor






0 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS

BROOKLET POLICE DEPT
Brooklet PD - (1) M500 + Access Point
09/03/2024

The design, technical, pricing, and other information (“Information”) furnished with this submission is confidential proprietary information of Motorola Solutions, Inc. or the Motorola Solutions entity
providing this quote ("M
disclose publicl{’

otorola”) and is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used for evaluation purposes only. To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, the Information is not to be
>clos or in any manner to anyone other than those required to evaluate the Information without the express written permission of Motorola.
MOTOROLA, MO

1
0, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Matorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and are used under license. All other trademarks are
the property of their respective owners. © 2020 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.




@ MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS QUOTE-2779364

09/03/2024

BROOKLET POLICE DEPT

PO BOX 67
BROOKLET, GA 30415

RE: Motorola Quote for Brooklet PD - (1) M500 + Access Point
Dear Nickki Garman,

Motorola Solutions is pleased to present BROOKLET POLICE DEPT with this quote for quality communications
equipment and services. The development of this quote provided us the opportunity to evaluate your
requirements and propose a solution to best fulfill your communications needs.

This information is provided to assist you in your evaluation process. Our goal is to provide BROOKLET POLICE
DEPT with the best products and services available in the communications industry. Please direct any questions

to Killian Kring at KILLIAN.KRING@motorolasolutions.com.

We thank you for the opportunity to provide you with premier communications and look forward to your review and
feedback regarding this quote.

Sincerely,

Killian Kring



@) mororoLasoLuTIONS .  QUOTE-2779364
Brooklet PD - (1) M500 + Acces
Point

Billing Address: -Quote Date:09/03/2024

BROOKLET POLICE DEPT Expiration Date:12/02/2024

PO BOX 67 Quote Created By:

BROOKLET, GA 30415 Killian Kring

us KILLIAN.KRING@

motorolasolutions.com

End Customer:

BROOKLET POLICE DEPT
Nickki Garman
nickki.garman@brookletga.us
(912) 842-9911

Summary:

Any sales transaction resulting from Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the applicable Motorola Standard Terms
and Conditions, notwithstanding terms and conditions on purchase orders or other Customer ordering documents.
Motorola Standard Terms and Conditions are found at www.motorolasolutions.com/product-terms.

Line # Item Number Description List Price Sale Price Ext. Sale Price
. Ms0o '
1 WGB-0700A VIDEO EQUIPMENT,M500 IN- 1 $7,143.75 $5,715.00 $5,715.00
CAR SYSTEM FRONT/
S o PASSENGER CAM* »
2 WGB-0189A MTIK CONF 1 $410.00 $328.00 $328.00
KIT,802.11AC,M500POE,5GHZ
» » ANT
3 WGP01566-350 ACCESS POINT, MIKROTIK, 1 $250.00 $200.00 $200.00
S 802.11AC, 5GHZ .
4 WGP01567 BRKT KIT POINT UNIVERSAL J- 1 $25.00 $20.00 $20.00
MOUNT

Grand Total ‘ $6,263.00(USD)

Notes:
e Additional information is required for one or more items on the quote for an order.

e Unless otherwise noted, this quote excludes sales tax or other applicable taxes (such as Goods and Services
Tax, sales tax, Value Added Tax and other taxes of a similar nature). Any tax the customer is subject to will be
added to invoices.

e Unless otherwise noted in this quote / order, installation of equipment is not included.

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the
"“Underlying Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between
Motorola and Customer, then Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.

Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800

Page 3



0 MOTOROLA SCLUTIONS Q?QTEQ??;@M
ookiet PD - {1) M500 + Access
Point

M500 IN-CAR VIDEO SYSTEM SOLUTION DESCRIPTION

The M500 In-Car Video System is the first Al-enabled in-car video solution for law enforcement. It combines
Motorola's powerful camera technology with our
industry-leading digital evidence management software,
VideoManager, to deliver high-quality digital evidence
and real-time analytics.

The M500 offers the following benefits:

e Delivers exceptionally clear, evidence-grade video,
from inside and outside the wvehicle

e The M500 has three high-definition cameras,
mounted on the front and rear windshield and in the
cabin. The front camera has a 4K sensor, with an ultra high-definition recording resolution that captures both
wide-angle and focused video streams. The cabin camera’s infrared illumination allows backseat recording in
total darkness, and a built-in microphone captures audio in the vehicle during recording.

e Works reliably, even in challenging situations

e The cameras and processor are small, rugged devices, easily and securely installed where they do not hinder
any line of sight. They are tamper proof and built to withstand significant impact and severe weather
conditions. Even if a vehicle is in a serious collision, the Uninterruptible Power *Supply automatically kicks into
continue capturing evidence for those critical extra seconds.

e Protects videc data, whether in transit or at rest

o The powerful core processor, with a 1 terabyte drive, securely stores all video footage, encrypting the data to
prevent cyber threats. '

e Provides users a reliable, easy-to-learn system

o Ease of use is at the heart of the M500. The interface is highly intuitive, and any feature can be accessed with
no more than three touches of the control panel. Users can start a recording manually or program sensors to
activate a recording when triggered — such as a siren, blue lights, vehicle speed, crash detection, wireless
microphones, and more. After the recording starts and is categorized, everything is automated, including the
uploading of footage tothe system’s evidence management software, VideoManager. There, recordings are
easily managed, redacted, organized, and shared with all authorized parties,-including first responders, fleet
managers, investigative officers, supenisors, prosecutors, and legal teams.

e Increases efficiency

o The system’s software makes it easy to search and analyze Video footage, which can save countless hours
for users and minimize human error.
e Promotes trust

o By provding a clear record of incidents that occur while officers are on duty, the M500 promotes trust
between public safety agents and the communities they senve.

o Integrates seamlessly with other Motorola technologies
e The M500 offers additional benefits when working in conjunction with Motorola’s V700 Body-Womn Camera or
L5M License Plate Recognition camera and VehicleManager. .

- When used with the V700, the M500 in-car video system triggers the V700 to record at the same time.
Officers can focus on the situation at hand, while the cameras — working together as a seamiess system —
capture synchronized recording from multiple vantage points. The footage is uploaded to and can be
reviewed on the same system.

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the
“*Underlying Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products” "). If no Underlying Agreement exists between
Motorola and Customer, then Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.

Page 4

[e3 8



0 MOTOROLA SCLUTIONS

- When used with the L5M, both the LPR camera and the M500 feed their collected license plate data into
Vigilant VehicleManager and display the information on a single interface. Working together, the systems
increase coverage while maintaining ease of use through a shared user interface and database.

The M500 is a reliable and comprehensive mobile video solution that will enhance safety, promote accountability,
and improve efficiency. It ensures that you always have the critical information needed for smarter, faster
decisions to help keep officers and the communities they sene safe.

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the
“*Underlying Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between
Motorola and Customer, then Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola’s Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.

Page 5 -



McLaggan Communications & Radar Service Inc. Estimate
70 Giddens Rd. ,
Hahira, GA 31632 e sl
Phone # 2298968205 81312024 o
Fax# 229-896-2235
Customer
Brooklet Police Department
PO Box 6
Brooklet, GA 30415
ftem Description Qty Rate Total
Dodge Durango (Patrol Unit)
ALGT53J-P2LC 53" Allegiant Lightbar, Duai Color, Biue/White Front, Blue/Amber Rear, Clear 1 1,689.00 1,689.00
domes
PW100 Pathway PW100 Siren Pkg 1 679.00 679.00
(Includes PW100, ES100C Spkr, and Universal Spkr Bracket)
MPS62U-* MicroPulse Ultra 6 - Color: Blue 6 109.00 654.00
{2 on front and one on either side of pushbumper, 2 on tag)
4169107 Corner LED - (2 on reverse lights) 2 75.00 150.00
425-6706 Durango 2021+ DGS/Max Depth Contour Console (16" FP) 1 528.00 529.00
425-3704 ABS Dual Cup Holder Facepiate Mount 1 48.00 49.00
4250029 Armrest, Tall Rear Mounted 1 75.00 75.00
425-3692 Raised Microphone Bracket 1 15.00 15.00
BR-930 3 Hole Cig Plug 1 18.00 18.00
475-0965 Durango 14+ Space Creator Partition- High Security/High Visibility 1 790.00 790.00
475-8848 Lower Extension Panels for 475-0965 1 80.00 90.00
475-0822 Prisoner Cargo Barrier 1 495.00 495.00
NSR-8924XL Xtreme Lumens Polymer Multi-Function Rechargeable Flashlight 1 159.00 159.00
GRH-5202T-2L.72 Dodge, Durango, 2021+ Push Bumper, LR Series Push Bumper 1 529.00 529.00
GRH-5202WHDT Dodge Durango, 21+ Heavy Duty Wraparound Brush Guards 1 499.00 499.00
NMOKHFUD25 Antenna cable, 9-6000 MHZ 25 FT 1 25.00 25.00
QW-152 152-162 Mhz chrome quarter wave antenna 1 12.00 12.00
38332 rini UHF male crimp-RG58 1 4.00 4.00
WTINT-2 Tint 2 Front Windows 1 110.00 110.00
graphics package graphics package for car - non reflective 1 750.00 750.00
Misc Install Paris wire, connectors, fuses, fuse holders, loom, screws, bolts, misc materiais 1 75.00 75.00
{Coax and RF connectors not included) :
Instail Install labor 1 1,750.00 1,750.00
-Install equipment listed above as well as agency provided radio, radar, and
Moto M500 in-car video ‘+ ?\E.
All credit card transactions will be subject to a 3.99% transaction fee. Subtotal $0.145.00

Sales Tax (0.0%)

$0.00

Total

$9,146.00










September 4, 2024
MEMO

TO: Ali City Employees
FROM: City Manager

SUBJECT: Bids/Quotes/Proposals

The Georgia Records Retention Act requires that all bids/quotes/proposals must be retained for a
minimum of 3 years before the City is allowed to dispose of them. Therefore, all City
bids/quotes/proposals must be in writing. Not following this Act is a violation of Georgia law.

All contractor bids/quotes/proposals must include the scope of work.






